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BHNRS -BBEENRESREKB/AT 2018-19
How We Serve — HKPC and Its Subsidiaries 2018-19

EERE
Operational Highlights

(&)

/\
R RE RIS A

Consolidated Service Income

N -
o0 0 =0
E 4 6 8 Hundred
° Million
|

- FRLGREIRBUBAZESE 468 T B
FHRBEAIERLNE4% -

. HE1T944EFTEEAMIEE - 43EFAEIER -
ERHNEFPNRIERT0% 5T /N o

o ML 27 IBHRISFE T 0 KIS 18 BRIl
it o FEff 21 EEF o

o THAOMDPE40RBIER DRI AH34% K
21% °

- 84% I EFRBANMDE  ERA60% B
B/ e

- AABEAHITRENBIDFEIERES 8
BEEBRHAENOWESFEFRNZILE
EEheiaEE 11,26 8T -

KBS

Strategic Collaborations

Consolidated service income of HK$468 million, a 4% year-on-year
organic growth.

+ 944 new consultancy projects; 43 new R&D projects; 70% new

customer orders from SMEs.

27 new services and products; commercialised 18 technologies and
obtained 21 patents.

34% i4.0 and 21% e4.0 service growth.

+ 84% local procurement of which 60% purchased from SMEs.

BUD Fund, Cleaner Production Partnership Programme and Recycling
Fund implemented by HKPC released HK$1.126 billion cumulative
approved funding during the year.

© © 0 0 0 000000 0000000000000 000000000000 0000000000000 000000000 0000000000000 00000 00 O

\|

1= [ 58 BR K 2 T % B & (RWTH Aachen
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BE SR AR EE L ©

c DHEERERESERREERORE
BmRBRIEEXEEHE

- AENBREBEEL EETITF S udemy H
FEtE HABEBALE -

. HAXEIREER IR SE R IE ©

LU

£ ENRHKPC

Collaborated with Germany’s RWTH Aachen Campus to establish
global leading Artificial Intelligence and Robotics Research Centre in
Hong Kong.

Collaborated with Guangdong Science & Technology Cooperation
Centre and Zhaoqing Municipal Science and Technology Bureau.

Joined hands with global online learning portal Udemy to strengthen
Hong Kong talent pool.

Pledged with the US Department of Commerce to strengthen Smart
Technology Collaboration.

% # ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19



FFIEVARFS How We Serve

& F R

Customer Satisfaction

O e 9.07

EEWET
bo

- BPRBEABEREFHED

« Average customer satisfaction surveys score:
9.07/10.

9.07/10 °

Scored

ee e 000000000 00

BBEOE

Communication with Stakeholders

K 28,396
QR

MIXXZEFA
New Industry Support Platforms

N
g = O

- BiesETTEAAED -
. 28,396 NRZITTEBH G IMIEE KB -
+ Held 65 industry consultation events.

. 28,396 people attended networking activities for
industry associations and seminars.

LB

© © ¢ 0 0 0 00 0000000000000 00000 00000000000 0000000000000 0000000000000 000000000000000 o

. FHRBLAl S A (THE HATCH) - B 128 B 45 44
BEREERMMZAT (Fraunhofer IPT) &
1E » RS aEER MR -

- AREBRKEBEEENRERKEE
BRANEEEELENTORBRMBNR
MRFE - EEXERAOEE -

cERYEEHRBRRVEBEESRER « Established the HKPC Shenzhen Innovation and Technology
FYIBIH R ML - (RERBEIFT R Centre in the Shenzhen Futian Free Trade Zone, to facilitate Hong

« Set up THE HATCH - INC Invention Centre with Germany’s Fraunhofer
IPT to foster smart products and services development.

« Joined hands with major productivity centres in the Greater Bay Area
to form the Greater Bay Productivity Consortium, as knowledge
and technology exchange platform, leveraging the opportunities
arising from the Greater Bay Area.

RER -

- FIAEIE AT BB EMB A
MARPNRARRZEAAZRHERT
B HnsR Hiﬁé?i\éﬂ BT RTT
EREEHNBE IR

LN
A Om

f # ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19

Kong-Shenzhen innovation and technology development.

« Started to administer Cybersec Infohub - newly launched by the
Office of the Government Chief Information Office to enhance the
exchange of cyber security information with industry and enterprises
to defend against cyber attacks.

£ ENRHKPC
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FFIEVARFS How We Serve

XEFNE
SMEs Support

« SME One /N1 — U538 : 2018-19 F 2 ¢
— R e AiBiB1,545 KPR
BIEEFTEEM 2 AIERERA

BNE - WHERIE1,894THARMAREPNE

¥
i) o

cBRERE ARERERARASETENE
BES BUDEEES) LITHEBE : 82
20193 AK  2#tt1,8511E&EBHIEE -
BEPFBBEEE 1R TER  HWES
CERAERMMEBETISHHRS -

cBEEANEREERBFERZEE
(ReTAAS) SATTHERE « RIEHL L 371 EE BYIE
B RENBBREEL1T3008 T £8)
TECEEAREERBANE K - WiRA
EEN -

BRI E

Serving the Community

- BRBANETBRHEEARE  UXE
RE PERTHERMCECEHEEE
T SRR

. HAIZEB YA SR 2018-19F NEYE 5615

LANEI K STEM# B BERERES) - WETT
BIE 140 S5 BIRE R L2 1R o

- 2019 1 A EB B AR ERRIRER T

B — B GLink - (T A R B R T
HIERIM A P30 -

£ ENRHKPC
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« SME One - during 2018-19, organised seminars for 1,545 SMEs on

various funding schemes, briefings, knowledge sharing as well as new
business ordinances plus regulations. Handled 1,894 inquiries to
spread news about funding schemes.

Dedicated Fund on Branding, Upgrading and Domestic Sales
(BUD Fund) Implementer - as of end March 2019, approved and
granted over HK$760 million and approved 1,851 projects, to assist
Hong Kong enterprises in enhancing overall competitiveness among
Mainland China and ASEAN markets.

Retail Technology Adoption Assistance Scheme for Manpower
Demand Management (ReTAAS) - as of end March 2019, granted over
HK$13 million and approved 371 projects for retail enterprises, to
enhance manpower management and productivity with technologies.

w: 00+ 140

g’ 12 Sessions

91

« Organised the 9" Hong Kong Outstanding Corporate Citizenship

Awards to recognise companies, corporate volunteer teams and
social enterprises with remarkable achievements in corporate social
responsibility.

+ Inno Space - hosted 56 startups and STEM education-related events,

as well as more than 140 safety and machine training sessions during
2018-19.

Launched GLink in January 2019 - Hong Kong’s first gerontechnology
platform to facilitate communications between demand and supply
sides.

% # ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19
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FFIEVARFS How We Serve

0
O

cEWES: BERRBHEMIZE - UE « Recycling Fund - provision of technical support to the local recycling

EARBOWBEENAEERRE - H2 industry for the HKS1 billion scheme. As of March 2019, ~HK$152
2019F3AK - WIHAREFEBEIVENE million of funding has been approved for 179 projects; plus a series
SO HE1T9ERFIER - EMEOEE of supporting enhancement measures.

1f85F 2008t FEMHEL —R5EL

« Cleaner Production Partnership Programme - as of March 2019,

PR \
SRR - exceeding HK$102 million of funding has been approved for 811
- BREERBMHIE  HE2009F3AK B projects and activities cumulatively. The 93 completed demonstration
RIEHLE 811 [ERFEIE B KA E) - BR)FEER projects contributed to annual energy savings of 44 tera-joules, and
BE% 1182008 T - W 5eAK 93 [E/R&5 1A reduced annual effluent discharges by 71,125 tonnes.
B HEEMELSEEEE B 711,125
MRS 7K BERR o
O L —
' s
>
o —
- NEEAMEEE46EEARERERAR « Eight applied R&D innovations won major awards at the
BERE 46" International Exhibition of Inventions Geneva:
- AIEERRIETEE « Gold Medal with Congratulations from Jury:
- R BEE RS - High Pressure Processing System for Packaged Food
- FRAEHERES - Portable Electric Vehicle (EV) Charger Kit (PCK) System
- B BREDEER - Smart Counter-tampering Cargo Wrapping Film
- BT - Smart Safety Seat Belt
. 2 + Gold Medal:
- BEREREBEERERS - Smart Street Lamp Monitoring System
- BEERZEES - Tail Lift Anti-Trapping System
. SR - « Silver Medal:
2 BEATAR - Smart Toilet Seat
- BRBERHERS - Smart Wedding Ring-fitting System
- EHEZEBLRAN 2018 FREALEIR - Food Waste Total Recycling System was recognised at the Institute
B2 IRFEHMAE HEST of Chemical Engineering (IChemE) Global Awards Ceremony 2018:
- BEIRAER - SE RN - Highly Commended Commendation in Fnergy Category
- AIRHEARR - B E R - Highly Commended Commendation in Sustainability Category

f # ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19
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Who We Are
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EEEENRER (EENR) RN 1967F
FXILEDETEHRE - BRI MABREZ (&
TREES - 271388 o KT gl = R 7%
BOEBCERTEHEED - EENBHR
EEBURSTRIONER  REBFBEETL
FloBR  ZIREME WA AR
BN - AT BB AL - BeRiE
% MBERITEERIEBER  REEE
AR IR AEENFIERFHEF N

TENRREATIALEERSEBRNGIER
o RERTUMAIFTER  EEFIA AL
ERERBERG  RIATRE - BEKAL
RAMBEER TSP REGFEES

AN EENRIEGERM TEHEEAF
RMERANM TR REXAIEEE- - Z6
EmBIFMZMmER KL EEHTS
TEMNFENEMMER - BERTRTE %
AR BN EE R AR -

=
RS
Our Vision
RAERBNGCETRBM

Be the best solution
partner

N

c@

ENB

The Hong Kong Productivity Council (HKPC) is a multi-disciplinary
organisation established by statute in 1967, to promote productivity
excellence through integrated advanced technologies and innovative
service offerings to support Hong Kong enterprises. HKPC is the
champion and expert in facilitating Hong Kong’s reindustrialisation
empowered by i4.0 - focusing on R&D, 10T, big data analytics, Al and
Robotics technology development, digital manufacturing, etc., to help
enterprises and industries upgrade their business performance, lower
operating costs, increase productivity and enhance competitiveness.

HKPC is a trusted partner with all-rounded innovative solutions for
Hong Kong industries and enterprises, enabling them to achieve
resources and productivity utilisation, effectiveness and cost reduction,
and enhanced competitiveness in both local and international
marketplaces.

In addition, HKPC partners and collaborates with local industries and
enterprises to develop applied technology solutions for value creation. It
also benefits a variety of sectors both locally and internationally through
product innovation and technology transfer, with commercialisation of
multiple market-driven patents and technologies, bringing enormous
opportunities abound for licensing and transferring technology.

£ ap

Our Mission

IR TREAENEEND EERFIF#E Improvement
RBFEH B AIH Innovation
Enhance business productivity ~RE Ei& Integration
and competitiveness # S EH Integrity

S 1E Partnership
2215 Passion
BABZ People

B3R E# Performance

£ ENRHKPC
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ZERIE P& Pt 3% BZER
Idea Creation  Applied R&D STEM# B
Nurturing
Startups/

STEM
Education

LB RR
D B SR E R A R — BB
A B - B0 CRORA T ERE S M
WHRT - BN EBMEATEEE T
EXHAER -
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R EPI Who We Are

FEITE
What We Do

HE EmRE BRER ITXEAR
i4.02e4.0  Prototyping Rtz & Bt
Promote Government Industrial

4.0 & €4.0 Funding & Applications &
Tech Support Commercialisation

How We Are Funded

The HKSAR Government provides us with an annual grant that accounts
for approximately 30% of our income. The other 70% is generated by
various fee-charging services, competitive government-funded applied
R&D programmes, and industry support initiatives.

£ ENRHKPC
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Chairman’s Message

BRQFERT B NEE - EEDF2018-19 FHEE
AT R - BRERE  §R4FE - THXR4.0MEHX4.0
BRENIFEERER IO BERERE -

Technology is meant to advance with time. HKPC
has kept pace with it through some remarkable
achievements in the year of 2018-19, advocating
reindustrialisation, advanced manufacturing, smart
living, Industry 4.0 and Enterprise 4.0 among local

industry sectors.

01001
00100
10010

BAIERANERERETZRB - £E D
BB REIHER - FBEGRHE) T BT
BESRER B ELERSE - 5K
S THE HATCHT BBl L ) iR E —EEE R
BRE - BECENRFBE BRI
BalmE

‘“‘JrEEZ’EEEIJLuuHEHE’J%% & g [8IF )

THIRMEEZ IR ARERLEER
TEAOMBPEAONREERE - 5F » ERELEE
NREBEHITIEMESLEERR  BEESITE
T—EBAAMERMNTE40MEE40M
2 ERMEREBLEKINER [1IKAE
LHRn] ) FE  OEEEEENEAERE
Bt - SIEERREE -

£ ENRHKPC

aY
©/00)

The most valuable asset for Hong Kong industry is agility. HKPC is
dedicated to assist local enterprises undertaking digital transformation,
and adopting state-of-the-art technological and business solutions.
The establishment of THE HATCH -

an important milestone to scale local industry to new heights with the

INC Invention Centre represented

advocacy of design thinking.

Design thinking, enriched with a strong sense of innovation, is the
first step in creating one’s own brand. It is also a crucial first step for
enterprises in the quest for Industry 4.0 (i4.0) and Enterprise 4.0 (e4.0).
This year, | am truly thrilled that the HKPC team has successfully
localised the concept of i4.0 and e4.0, and assisted the first Hong
Kong enterprise achieving 1i Maturity Level. This is testament to Hong
Kong’s capability to develop high-value added and efficient land use
manufacturing processes on the ground.

% # ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19



SEFNEERME S ARBEMART
% B [BEME - FHREE NIRRT
BHNBEIRES | (BUDEIBEES) AE(LAME
FMRBFER - PRHBEETEATS - 5
—i2f - [BIRERBEIEIE S (RTTP)
TMAEEEAEBRRSHBR R ET X407
TR40ABIIFI - BBRHFEL - mEY
RO a4 -

BERERESERERE-—FRAR B
BERRIRE B ME - WRER2017F
BI38% MEEZE2018FH3% - BESHMFER
ko Dt BEMAEMHEP  NEENTIE

i CF B ES TEMBP/NDEENE
HIASEAR S ©

PNEEZREBRLBERRED - RERK
EENBRGEE ST /NI H BN M E R
R EMFERTE - BMFIE[EE] A
[8I37] K8 ERTT - BB — A RBF
B HERTEREENTE - REMEAM
BMBAZAHEMOR  BERBIXRL
NRSERBFENRED  BFERKNZ
9 o

EiHe  RAMAEEEXENEZBRE
TEEE  BWBEENRERE—FEKS
HIERRR AR B AR BHORES
BEVFT—4F -

*E
MER cBs, P

f # ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19

= fERi&F Chairman’s Message

Another remarkable milestone was the growth of the “Dedicated Fund
for Branding, Upgrading and Domestic Sales” (BUD Fund), with more
local enterprises accessing its resources for help in navigating the
rough seas, leveraging the opportunities in expanding their business to
Mainland China and ASEAN markets. Together with support from the
“Reindustrialisation Technology Training Programme” (RTTP), industry
can find opportunities within the challenges they currently face, through
courses on i4.0 and e4.0, as well as high-end technology.

These initiatives, among other incentives for small and medium-sized
enterprises (SMEs), have truly helped Hong Kong industries and the
SMEs to thrive and surf the wave of economic uncertainties triggered
by changes in the business environment. With Hong Kong’s economic
growth slowing to 3% in 2018, down from 3.8% in 2017, it has become
increasingly important to help our industrial sectors operated more
efficiently.

SMEs sit at the core of Hong Kong economy. In the days to come,
HKPC will continue to stand by their side, offer them immediate and
timely assistance, and “inspire” the industry in their “transformation”
journey. We will be embracing the notable mission through providing a
holistic and comprehensive service solutions platform for businesses,
supporting technology innovation and digital transformation, realising
reindustrialisation, as well as enhancing the competiveness of Hong
Kong industry for wider success.

Taking the chance, I thank all the Council Members and our fellow
colleagues for their dedications and many productive endeavours,
which have yielded a plentiful harvest in the past fiscal year. | look
forward to another exciting year to come.

Willy LIN Sun-mo GBS, JP
Chairman

£ ENRHKPC
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Council Membership

ES:

Chairman

MER

Mr Willy Lin Sun-mo, ces, s
EESER (BR) BRADESRKE
Managing Director, Milo’s Knitwear
(International) Ltd.

N

BEXEERETEEEERE

Deputy Chairman and Audit Committee Chairman
&I Mr Patrick Wong Chi-kwong

RIK

Retired

MBEESEXRE

Finance Committee Chairman

B H{E Mr Wilson Fung Ying-wai

RIK

Retired

BESKEEEITRE

Staffing Committee Chairman
FR#E1E Mr Sunny Tan
BMRERARABVMTRIER

Executive Vice President, Luen Thai Holdings Ltd.

EBBREEGERE

Business Development Committee Chairman

Ff2% Mr Emil Yu Chen-on, s
MRESEHEFR D ABKE

Director and General Manger, Keystone Electric Wire &
Cable Co. Ltd.

BHE/EE/ BMARNRER

Management / Professional / Academic Representatives

BRI Prof John Chai Yat-chiu, s
EHEEERERARNESEKE

PR H Ms Clara Chan Yuen-shan, ws
FIFCERBRA B ITHAAR

sR#= M Mr Alan Cheung
Managing Director, TML Apparel Ltd.

JEBET Mr Felix Chow Bok-hin
BRIFR B EEERARNATER
Executive Chairman, Niche-Tech Group Ltd.
IS HL{E Mr Wilson Fung Ying-wai
BIK

Retired

BB E Ms Mandy Kwok Man-yee
RIK

Retired

&{ZE Mr Paul Poon Wai-yin
FEERRE

Vice Chancellor, CLP Power Academy

-

Managing Director, Fook Tin Group Holdings Ltd.

Chief Executive Officer, Lee Kee Holdings Ltd.

S2.374E Dr Allen Shi Lop-tak, ess, ur, sp
EXEBEBRAREE
Chairman, Brilliant International Group Ltd.

=

a8 52 A Prof Tam Kar-yan,ux
EENBEAZIBERERKRRE

Dean of School of Business and Management, The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology

PRAE1E Mr Sunny Tan
BRZERERATDITRAR

Executive Vice President, Luen Thai Holdings Ltd.

& B 3B Mrs Carrie Yau Tsang Ka-lai, cs, sp
BEIRBHTHS

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council

$ 57 Ms Karmen Yeung Ka-yin
EERSTMBBEREEA
Partner, KPMG

F#£Z Mr Emil Yu Chen-on, »
MREGEEFRLABKE

Director and General Manger, Keystone Electric Wire
& Cable Co. Ltd.

10 £ ENRHKPC
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B=2mME Council Membership

BT RAMKER BREE

Labour Representatives Public Officers
Z=FK IR Ms Amy Lee Sau-king \ =7k H Mr Cheuk Wing-hing, ces, \
EEMEXTEHSSEIERE A ENMRREANER
Vice Chairman, The Federation of Hong Kong Permanent Secretary for Innovation and Technology

Electrical & Mechanical Industries Trade Unions . . .
£ Ms Annie Choi Suk-han, s

M8 E Ms Juan Leung Chung-yan,ux AIFRREER

BEEISHaERIESR Commissioner for Innovation and Technology

Vice-Chai ,TheH K Federati f Trad = . . .

U|rc];eonsa|rman e Hong Kong Federation of Trade 7 Ms Salina Yan Mei-mei.»
TXE5FER

Z=g) Mr Li Hoi Director-General of Trade and Industry

BBE T EHBEEIITOEITRRRE
Deputy Executive Director, Hong Kong
Confederation of Trade Unions Training Centre

B $55€ Mr Andrew Au Sik-hung, »
B S R

Government Economist

Z 2 1% Miss Mabel Li Po-yi, »
K STRAER (L IEHTR)

Deputy Commissioner for Labour (Labour
Administration)

N

K E# 815 R Membership Changes M AUDITORS

(20191 B1HAER) e

(Effective Date 1 January 2019) ZKEE B Emst & Young
$1ER 8 NEW MEMBER AR LEGAL ADVISERS
BRIEHE  Ms Clara Chan Yuen-shan,u = EZE#M1T Wilkinson & Grist

e o EREMAERMIT Nixon Peabody CWL

Bi1EF & OUTGOING MEMBER B 201943831 B
RER  MrLeung Kwong-chuen As at 31 March 2019

f # ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 £ ENRHKPC
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Executive Director’s Review

[EBH - Al | REATENAB2E -

HRBZEXBBETREEET BER ] RASE

AT SCERNEAN - EEERETIEHRE - BRNAT ZEH

HmEBEZEAHR -

Transformation is the ever constant.

Corporates are more open to digitising their various
evolvements, hinging on sophistication from
technologies. This brings more vigorous competition
among industries, resources and talents than ever
before in the whole global stage.

EENRRBAMERE - LEFNE HE
KRt PIEREBRONBE  FIAITX40%
- BeeEE BIXCNESHME
B R REERE - REEELE
RHERHE  ARMELEEIOMRE - b
BIRGENTEXEERBEL -

BMBASBTEERRITER RA#
BEE  AEHNBKBAIF O] (THE
HATCH) + BBV T RIFER AR IE R D ERR
FRRM FIEHEMERBHNERERR - X
BOERRIEE (OEM) EA A RIARTR
% (oDM) - AEZEB B mAE (0BM) » B3
B E TG -

£ ENRHKPC

HKPC has the local companies, especially SMEs, at its heart at all times.
We stand to provide the most accessible technological and consultancy
advice, leading the development of localised Industry 4.0 (i4.0)
technology, Advanced Manufacturing, Reindustrialisation and Smart
Living applications. To cope with the distinguished business needs and
challenges in Hong Kong, we have introduced Enterprise 4.0 (e4.0) to

promote digital transformation among the service and retail sectors.

With such noble missions in the backbone of our operations, we are
always delivering for the betterment and sustainability of the wider
industry. The most remarkable initiative being the launch of THE
HATCH - a centre to facilitate companies of all sizes to embrace design
thinking and identify their products or services in their future sales cycle,
inspire them to change from OEM, ODM to OBM - establishing the brand
and technical skill of their own.

% # ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19
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#8# ©EE Executive Director’s Review

'/'TQ@ ,

d|g|tal feasibility of expanding advanced manufactui;lhjg\prloduhtlo‘ﬁ lines /

in local factory buildings — an important milestone to reindustrialisation
in Hong Kong, proving that it only requires smart automation, low land
use and effective manpower to deliver high value-added and quality

products in an efficient operation cost.

In order to serve the local industry further, we
have opened the third Electromagnetic
Compatibility (EMC) Chamber to
complement with local companies in

getting the international standards
for their products or devices.
Another facility that is in the
pipeline to be constructed for

the benefit of the wider industry

is the proposal of Artificial

Intelligence and Robotics

Research Centre, in collaboration

with the RWTH Aachen Campus
from Germany.

BB E AR &

PREERZES BORBRS
EEENREZEBERSEEE

R BTN BIMETF4EBAR
BIR#EAR] - ANB/RRIFTERITERE
ZESOE - BT AT FE

AN - RBEE R E BRI [2018F

REGCBTEMBSEIRFREME] LR
o AKBE T AR ERNAIF T

SEBRMEESBETREEUTIELER -

f # ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19

¢ o There are tremendous opportunities

for Hong Kong’s applied technologies in

the global stage. HKPC is proud to contribute

to shining Hong Kong with our accolades from various
international occasions. We have won eight awards in the 46"
International Exhibition of Inventions Geneva with our team in the

house and homegrown inventions.

Our Food Waste Total Recycling System won also an honourable
recognition from the Institute of Chemical Engineering Global Awards
Ceremony. These distinctions are wonderful credits to the innovation
efforts from the house of professionals within the HKPC Building. It
also pushes us to go further to identify areas we can contribute to

constructing a smarter city for everyone.

£ ENRHKPC
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REFBLERTT  HEABHKE  KBR
HARIE @ B/ DRIFFERS - TRRE
SEMBIEE TBRME - THRBE RInRAH
MIZHEREES BUDHEEES) | EITH
B E—IHPHEEARRBEMAERMS o

[BUDEHES | WEBEFHEER LT &
WA R - EREDE DK REEERR
RERE - 8t FENRERBERNEE
ERNAEAE BN RIATEMER
CREBREEEHNORERE—TFE
A DEEFEES - UREEIT SRR o

MSHEEERTRFREREE - BEELX
BITRAOMER4IONRBTES - I L—&
B ERERBERYG  BREEER LB
EEBRTHEEDER - NBREELHRT
BEERD (Smart @ Hong Kong) &% @ #1532
EBAEMEPLEATEZEROZERME
WREBEEAEZLRMRERTS — [Fi]
(GLink) BRI ©

EENR—RIMEFHER  RRTHEAHE
RERERERMNEES : [2F] (KamChAl) — 2
RER AET A ELTEBEA YT
ZUEM A ¢ [RoadBot 1] — BEMRAREA
REANERESENEEERE RS (8
EEDERE| — AMRGEERENRER
BheE : [BEEES] —BREMREREER

% BREEMAZER -

£ ENRHKPC

As a trustworthy partner to local SMEs, we pledge to offer the most
suitable assistance to our partners on the ground to prepare for the
challenges ahead. We are happy to continue with our support to the
HKSAR Government as the implementation agent for the “Dedicated
Fund for Branding, Upgrading and Domestic Sales” (BUD Fund), further
providing assistance to the industry in grasping the development

opportunities in ASEAN and Greater Bay Area markets.

Throughout the past few months, we witnessed the inclining number
of applications to BUD Fund. This is a solid proof of how our industry
needs such funding schemes to back their plans. Hence, HKPC has led
a series of seminars in partnership with the Consulate Generals of the
ASEAN countries and industry associations, as well as study missions for
interested companies to get to know more about the new markets via

first-hand knowledge exchange and experience sharing.

The demand for solutions to smartify businesses has been increasing.
Acknowledged by the increase in our service for i4.0 and e4.0, as well
as the advanced manufacturing consultancy advice we have provided
to the industry, Hong Kong is definitely in the highway towards Smart
City. We are honoured to have held the Smart@Hong Kong conference,
invited all R&D centres in Hong Kong to share their insights and thoughts
in front of nearly a thousand audience, and witnessed the launch of

GLink - Hong Kong’s first gerontechnology cluster.

HKPC has demonstrated the capability of Hong Kong’s smartification
through KamChAlI - the first-ever Hong Kong-style milk tea making robot
inheriting traditional skillset; RoadBot - a robotic structure that helps
with cone laying at road works; Smart Apparatus - combining hearing
and visual aids with technology; Smart Farm - allowing agriculture to be

feasible with compact space and effective input.
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I would like to express my heartiest
gratitude to the Innovation and
Technology Commission, our

® Council Chairman Mr Willy Lin

and all Council Members

° for their unfailing support

and guidance. It is truly
< momentous as we looked back
on the achievements and set our

sight on the road forward. All of these
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outcomes, however, belong to more
C than HKPC. They are for the wider Hong
Kong business sector and a realisation of
building from ideas to industry applications

through our technological competencies.

Looking ahead, HKPC will contribute with our specialised technology
and know-how to groom the wider business sector in the age of digital
transformation. My appreciation also goes to HKPC’s extraordinary
team for the great work over the year, which has made HKPC a splash in
leading Hong Kong to a smart era. | am confident that building on these
milestones and our professionalism, we can help Hong Kong industries

counter economic upheavals and surf the wave of digital economy.

Mohamed D. Butt
Executive Director
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HKPC is a statutory organisation governed by the Hong Kong
Productivity Council Ordinance (Chapter 1116 of Laws of Hong Kong).
HKPC is fully committed to maintaining good corporate governance
as it strongly believes that good corporate governance is essential
to accomplishing its public mission and meeting the expectations of
its stakeholders. HKPC attaches paramount importance to adopting
accountability, transparency, fairness and ethics as the cornerstones of
its corporate governance framework.

TEERES
Corporate Governance Structure

HRFITHRERG

HKSAR Government
%1z HE
Appointment Report

O.'

hikpc’

HES Council

Terms of Reference

BEEKZEES
Staffing
Committee

EBBRZEER
Business
Development
Committee

Finance
Committee

BREES

ZF
Appointment

Z1E
i W& NI BLED
R G Fets External
Appointment Report Auditor
Delegation Advice

B ZEE
Audit
Committee

4 & J1 BHKPC
EHEE Management

HE EE HE )

BE EE FEEE RitER
Report Guidance Report Report
Accountability Supervision Advice Information

WEBEFET K
BEREERIE

Internal Audit and
Risk Management Office

£ ENRHKPC
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Annual Audit
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The Council

The Council is HKPC's governing body, providing strategic leadership in
the fulfilment of the organisation’s functions.

The Council comprises not more than 23 Members appointed by the
HKSAR Government, of whom not more than five shall be public officers.
Among the non-official members (who represent management, labour
and professional or academic interests), a Chairman and a Deputy
Chairman shall be appointed.

The Chairman, and other Members, of the Council are non-executive in
nature. In the year under review, the Council convened three meetings.
The attendance records of individual members are available on page 24.

On an annual basis, the Council approves HKPC’s Three-Year Forecast,
the detailed Programme and Estimates of HKPC, and the Three-year
Strategic Plan.

Council Members’ Responsibility for the Accounts

Council Members acknowledge their responsibilities for ensuring that
the preparation of the annual accounts of HKPC is in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The statement of the Auditor of HKPC about their reporting
responsibilities on the accounts of HKPC is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements.

Council’s Committees

Four Committees have been set up under the auspices of the Council,
to look after different aspects of Council business: the Audit Committee,
the Finance Committee, the Staffing Committee and the Business
Development Committee. All the Committees are accountable to the
Council.

The minutes of the Council and Committees (except discussion items
containing commercially sensitive or confidential information and
the minutes of the Audit Committee) are made available on a non-
attributable basis on the HKPC website.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established to monitor and make
recommendations to enhance HKPC’s healthy corporate governance
in financial reporting, risk management, internal control, appointment
and performance of the external auditor, and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations. The Committee is authorised by the Council to
investigate any activity and resolve any disagreement within its scope of
duties.

£ ENRHKPC
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Staff members can directly report to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee on cases of malpractice or irregularities. The Committee is
underpinned by an Internal Audit and Risk Management Office, which
reports functionally to the Audit Committee and administratively to
the Executive Director. The Office is committed to assisting the Audit
Committee to safeguard and promote healthy corporate governance of
HKPC.

The Audit Committee is chaired by a Council member and currently has
six members. It met four times during the year in review.

Chairman
Mr Patrick Wong Chi-kwong
Members

Mr Alan Cheung
Ms Mandy Kwok Man-yee
Mr Paul Poon Wai-yin
Ms Karmen Yeung Ka-yin
Ms Annie Choi Suk-han, JP
Mr Mohamed D. Butt
As at 31 March 2019

Finance Committee

The Finance Committee monitors the financial performance of HKPC
and ensures that funds made available are properly accounted for. The
Committee approves changes to HKPC's policies and practices relating
to procurement, building management, fixed asset management,
charging levels of HKPC’s services and investment strategy and
guidelines.

The Committee recommends HKPC’s three-year forecast, an annual
programme and estimates and the transfer of funds between major
heads of expenditure, for consideration by the Council. The Committee
also advises the Council on matters relating to HKPC'’s financial policies
and matters that have a significant financial impact on HKPC.

The Finance Committee is chaired by a Council member and currently
has seven members. It met three times during the year in review.

Chairman
Mr Wilson Fung Ying-wai
Members

Prof John Chai Yat-chiu, JP
Mr Felix Chow Bok-hin
Dr Allen Shi Lop-tak, BBS, MH, JP
Ms Karmen Yeung Ka-yin
Mr Andrew Au Sik-hung, JP
Miss Kathy Chan Nap-sze
Mr Mohamed D. Butt
As at 31 March 2019
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Staffing Committee

The Staffing Committee approves the appointment of General
Managers. The Committee monitors the staffing situation and
recommends changes to the Council where appropriate. It advises the
Council on human resources development policies. The Committee
also monitors HKPC’s general terms and conditions of service, to ensure
that these are adequate to recruit and retain competent staff, and
recommends changes to the Council where necessary. The Committee
provides a channel between the Council and staff members for the
communication of grievances about general terms and conditions of
service, in situations where they cannot be resolved by consultation.

The Staffing Committee is chaired by a Council member and currently
has nine members. It met three times during the year in review.

Chairman
Mr Sunny Tan

Members

Ms Mandy Kwok Man-yee
Ms Amy Lee Sau-king
Ms Juan Leung Chung-yan, MH
Mr Li Hoi
Mr Patrick Wong Chi-kwong
Mrs Carrie Yau Tsang Ka-lai, GBS, JP
Miss Mabel Li Po-yi, JP
Miss Kathy Chan Nap-sze
Mr Mohamed D. Butt
As at 31 March 2019

Business Development Committee

The Business Development Committee reviews the business activities
of HKPC, explores new business opportunities, and recommends the
three-year strategic plan of HKPC to the Council. The Committee also
monitors the performance of HKPC’s subsidiary companies.

The Business Development Committee is chaired by a Council member
and currently has seven members. It met three times during the year in
review.

Chairman
Mr Emil Yu Chen-on, JP

Members

Ms Clara Chan Yuen-shan, MH
Mr Alan Cheung
Mr Felix Chow Bok-hin
Mr Paul Poon Wai-yin
Prof Tam Kar-yan, MH
Miss Kathy Chan Nap-sze
Mr Mohamed D. Butt
As at 31 March 2019
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Internal Control and Risk
Management

The Council considers it is highly important to maintain a high standard
of corporate governance and enhance the organisation’s transparency
and accountability to the public. The external and internal audit systems
are instrumental in this regard.

External Audit

The Council has appointed Ernst & Young as the external auditor, to
conduct an audit of its financial statements.

The external audit plays an important role in reviewing the financial
statements as well as strengthening the internal controls of HKPC.
Before an audit commences, the external auditor discusses the nature
and scope of the audit with the Audit Committee, if necessary, together
with any matters the external auditor may wish to discuss in the
absence of management. Any management letter from the external
auditor and HKPC management’s response will be reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

Internal Audit

The Council’s Internal Audit and Risk Management Office (“ARQO”) is
directed by the Audit Committee of HKPC, to assist the management
team with the Council’s risk management function.

ARO proactively identifies and examines any area of risk in HKPC
operations, and proposes appropriate internal control measure in line
with the mandates for corporate governance. ARO also formulates
and executes an overall audit policy and strategy for the Council
to safeguard its assets, ensure compliance with relevant laws and
regulations, promote operational efficiency and effectiveness, and
ensure the accuracy and reliability of its records.

The Office reports directly to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. At
every Audit Committee meeting, the Office reports to the Committee
its findings on the auditing of control sufficiency and the compliance
situation for different HKPC operations.

In the year under review, the ARO reported the audit results of six

operations spanning various aspects of HKPC. The audit job plans were
reviewed and agreed by the Audit Committee in advance.
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Internal Control

To ensure an effective system of internal control is in place, HKPC
management has also performed the following tasks during the
reporting period:

Reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control and
reported to the Council through a review of the findings and
recommendations, as set out in the reports of the internal audit;
Reviewed the resources for all divisions during the annual
Programme and Estimates exercise;

Conducted frequent reviews of the business, external environment
and significant risks as part of the annual Programme and
Estimates exercise; and

Met with external auditors together with the Audit Committee
Chairman to report on any control weaknesses and the
effectiveness of financial reporting and compliance, as discussed
during the meeting of the Audit Committee.

Transparency

In accordance with the requirements of the HKPC Ordinance, HKPC’s
Annual Report, with the statement of accounts and the auditor’s report,
is tabled at the Legislative Council each year. To enhance transparency,
the annual emoluments of all senior executives in the top two tiers
of HKPC management are disclosed under Note 19 to the financial
statements on page 46 of the full audited accounts.

The attendance of Members in Council and Committees is detailed on
page 24.

Since November 2009, the minutes of the Council and Committees
(except discussion items containing commercially sensitive or
confidential information and the minutes of the Audit Committee) have
been made available on a non-attributable basis on the HKPC website.

Separately, the Council adopted a two-tier reporting system for
declarations of interest by Council Members, who are required
to disclose upon first appointment and annually thereafter, any
proprietorships, partnerships or directorships of companies. They are
also required to disclose remunerated employments, offices, trades,
professions or vocations as well as shareholdings in companies, public
or private (amounting to 1% or more of the company’s issued share
capital).

The register of declarations is made available for public inspection upon
request. Furthermore, Members are required, as soon as practicable
after they have become aware of it, to disclose to the Chairman (or the
Council) their interest in any matter under consideration by the Council
prior to the discussion.
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To further enhance governance, a Code of Conduct based on the
Independent Commission for Against Corruption’s “Sample of Code
of Conduct for Members of Public Bodies” is applicable to all Council
Members. The objective of the Code is to communicate HKPC’s values
and standards of behaviour to which Members should adhere in the
discharge of their duties.

It also provides a framework for determining appropriate actions and
making appropriate decisions for situations which Members have
commonly encountered, such as advantages and entertainment
offered, conflict of interest foreseen, and so on. Specifically, the Code of
Conduct includes five major categories: Prevention of Bribery, Conflict
of Interest, Misuse of Official Position, Confidentiality of Information,
and Indebtedness.

Whistleblowing

The Council has a whistleblowing policy to provide the wider
public with reporting channels and guidance on whistleblowing.
Persons who have legitimate concerns regarding any irregularity,
misconduct or malpractice by the Council or any staff member may
raise the matter directly through mail or a dedicated email address
(whistleblowing@hkpc.org) to the Audit Committee (AC) Chairman of
the Council. Only persons who are designated by the AC Chairman will
have access to such emails or correspondence.

The AC Chairman will review each complaint and decide how it should
be addressed. This may involve nominating an appropriate investigating
officer or setting up of a special committee to conduct an independent
investigation into the matter.

Safety and Security Governance

Safety and security remain a priority of the Council. HKPC is committed
to providing and preserving an inherently safe and healthy work
environment for all staff and stakeholders.

Last year HKPC was awarded of “Safety Performance Award” (under
The 17" Hong Kong Occupational Safety and Health Award) which
demonstrated an outstanding performance in occupational health and
safety (OHS) with proven good safety record over the past three years.

Addressing the new standard of 1S045001 issued in March 2018, HKPC
has systemically reviewed and upgraded the OHS management system
for the migration. In February 2019, HKPC passed the certification audit
and awarded of both OHSAS 18001 and 1SO45001 certification.
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Internal Communications and Staff Engagement

HKPC encourages effective communication, to foster engagement and
unleash potentials to drive superior performance. HKPC aims to achieve
business sustainability through promoting an energetic and productive
workforce culture. An employee opinion survey was conducted in 2018.
Staff were invited to share their views on different areas relating to
HKPC’s business, corporate culture, management leadership and style,
communications, and workplace condition and other aspects.

HKPC is committed to nurturing and learning from young generation.
Reverse Mentoring is an initiative in which senior executives are paired
with and mentored by younger employees on topics such as technology,
social media and current trends. Through this mutually beneficial
partnership, mentors and mentees build skills and bridge generational
gaps. Younger employees are to share with senior executives on new
product and service ideas, ever-evolving technology, social media and
the latest workplace trends. In return, they learn valuable organisational
and leadership skills from their mentees.

HKPC is also committed to promoting holistic well-being and work life
balance for its staff members. In November 2018, HKPC announced the
extension of its paid maternity leave from 10 weeks to 14 weeks, and
paid paternity leave from 3 days to 5 days for eligible staff members.
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BEEENEKZE SR HELRE
Council and Standing Committee Meeting Attendance Record

4/2018 - 3/2019 BEg Eﬁ%§$i§ %7’]’%@}% %‘r
Council
ERILE GBS P Mr Willy Lin Sun-mo, GBS, JP
\mEokEA Mr Patrick Wong Chi-kwong 3/3 3/3 4/4
ERFBHIL - JP Prof John Chai Yat-chiu, JP 3/3 3/3
PRigEH 22 £ MH Ms Clara Chan Yuen-shan, MH 1 1
(/1 1/1/2019) (from 1/1/2019)
by ited Mr Alan Cheung 3/3 3/3 4/4
AiEE kA Mr Felix Chow Bok-hin 1/3 23 2/3
IHRERE Mr Wilson Fung Ying-wai 3/3 3/3
HPEZ L Ms Mandy Kwok Man-yee 3/3 3/3 4/4
’ Mr L K -ch MH
BERSE  MH " Leung Kiwong-chuen, 22 22 43
(%31/12/2018) (till 31/12/2018)
BEBLA Mr Paul Poon Wai-yin 2/3 3/3 3/4
SH7{E1E+ - BBS * MH * JP DrAllen Shi Lop-tak, BBS, MH, JP 2/3 1/3
EREHR - MH Prof Tam Kar-yan, MH 2/3 3/3
CEEl D Mr Sunny Tan 3/3 3/3
LEREBRZLT GBS+ JP Mrs Carrie Yau Tsang Ka-lai, GBS, JP 3/3 2/3
e Ms Karmen Yeung Ka-yin 2/3 3/3 4/4
FlezdE - up Mr Emil Yu Chen-on, JP 2/3 3/3
EERLZT Ms Amy Lee Sau-king 3/3 3/3
AR L - MH Ms Juan Leung Chung-yan, MH 3/3 3/3
bt Mr Li Hoi 2/3 3/3
BIFTREIRBEEMERSE Permanent Secretary for Innovation
RHEE and Technology or his/her alternative 3/3
members
BRI ZEERSE(FHZEE  Commissioner for Innovation and
Technology or his/her alternative 3/3 2/3 3/3 3/3 4/4
members
THESEZRSNHIRERBELE Director-General of Trade and
Industry or his/her alternative 3/3
members
B EREE sk EiamE e Government Economist or his/her 33 3
alternative members
ABTREERSHEBEEEZS Deputy Commissioner for Labour or 33 33
his/her alternative members
EBEENREREE Executive Director of HKPC 3/3 3/3 3/3 4/4

BEEH-BEFHEREE  XHER-XBEREZEBES  WK-WKEEE  Fil-F1E8g

SC - Staffing Committee, BDC - Business Development Committee, FC - Finance Committee, AC - Audit Committee

24 £ ENRHKPC % # ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19



TEWEER
Key Performance Measures

PR A% 4= {3t
Service Delivery

FEFEITEE 28
Number of consultancy projects
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Number of training course participants
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Number of people attended exhibitions/study missions/

conferences
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Financial Result (HK$M)

EREIEEON

Income from consultancy projects
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Income from training courses
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Income from exhibitions/study missions/conferences
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Income from manufacturing support projects
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Effectiveness
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EIIIE=PN -t

Number of people attended
events/networking activities
forindustry associations/free
seminars

BEEmBEER

Customer satisfaction index

EEmE
Customer satisfaction

f # ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19

944 699 948 917 970
6,079 6,196 4,198 4,248 3,041
4,039 4,425 4,293 2,221 3,969
340.9 362.6 342.4 307.7 265.4

7.6 8.0 9.4 8.9 12.9

6.2 8.1 9.4 4.8 9.4

30.0 26.7 25.2 23.6 26.0

28,396 24,187 22,093 20,620 23,531

9.07 8.99 8.99 8.92 8.9
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Mr Mohamed D. Butt
Executive Director

Mr Mohamed D. Butt has led HKPC since December 2017. He brought
to the Council with more than 30 years of executive leadership
experience, well-practised senior management skills and success cases
from multinational environment, with deep industry and customer
knowledge in infrastructure, industrial and consumer sectors, backed by
his profound strategic mindset, rich business insights and remarkable
winning track records.

Mr Butt previously spearheaded large transformational projects, in
collaboration with private and public sectors. He worked for General
Electric (GE) for over two decades, where he held various senior
management positions including President & CEO of GE’s Transportation
Business in the Asia Pacific region, provided strategic leadership to have
expanded the business footprints. Before such role, he also served as
President & CEO of GE Lighting Asia and GE Security Asia respectively.

Mr Butt graduated from Winona State University, Minnesota, US, with
a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration. He also
received his Master in Business Administration from Kellogg School of
Management and the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.

Dr Lawrence Cheung Chi-chong
Chief Innovation Officer

Dr Lawrence Cheung joined HKPC in 1996. He has more than 25 years
of experience in research and development, consultancy and business.
He manages a broad business portfolio on technological research and
development as well as consultancy services in automotive, smart
electronics, robotics and automation, medical devices, environmental
management, smart materials and manufacturing technology, and
testing services.

Prior to joining HKPC, Dr Cheung held a senior research post at the
Commonwealth Scientific and Industrial Research Organisation
(CSIRO) of Australia. He obtained a doctorate degree, and Bachelor
of Engineering (with honours) and Bachelor of Science degrees from
Monash University in Australia.

Mr Edmond Lai Shiao-bun
Chief Digital Officer

Mr Edmond Lai joined HKPC in 2018 to lead the digital transformation,
smart manufacturing and Mainland business of the HKPC. Mr Lai
is an expert in Industry 4.0 (i4.0) and Enterprise 4.0 (e4.0) business
transformation, as well as digital product development, with experience
in local and overseas market development.

Prior to joining HKPC, Mr Lai worked in General Electric (GE) for
more than 20 years. He successfully completed the management
trainee programme in the information technology department of the
multinational company, and then had also served in their internal audit
and finance functions. He also spearheaded his expertise across other
business units, such as aviation, capital, healthcare, plastics, power,
transportation, etc., among various regions including Greater China,
Australia, Japan, Singapore, Switzerland, the United States, etc. He
also assumed regional and global responsibilities to drive the business
growth for various industries, such as energy storage, mining, marine,
rail, renewable energy, thermal power generation, etc.

Mr Lai held the Bachelor of Engineering (Computer Engineering) and
Master of Philosophy (Computer Science) degrees from the University of
Hong Kong.
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Organisation Structure

R

Executive Director

Executive Director Office

*

REEREM

Technology Development
Branch (TDB)

IR

— Corporate Development

Division (CDD)

B75 RIREEED

— Finance & Procurement

Division (FPD)

AT EIR ) &t e IR A

— Human Resources and Facility

Management Division (HFD)

BEaWER

Council Secretariat (CS)

A& TR

™1 Community Innovation Unit

(CIV)

R AR
EIRPAE
Internal Audit & Risk
Management Office (ARO)*

B

Digital Branch
(DTB)

AERET

— Automotive & Electronics

Division (AED)

ERAS R A A0
Digital Transformation
Division (DTD)

AT
RE R L

— Automotive Parts and

Accessory Systems
R&D Centre (APAS)

B B BLIE K A ZE 7%
Smart Manufacturing &
Mainland Business Division
(SMD)

IRIREIEA

— Environmental Management

Division (EMD)

CELLE
Management Consulting
Division (MCD)

Functionally reports to Audit Committee Chairman

WAERBEFZEGTRERER
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Productivity (Holdings) Limited and
Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprises
in the PRD

The Productivity (Holdings) Limited was established on 28 July 2003,
with the objective of promoting productivity excellence through the
provision of integrated support across the value chain of Hong Kong
firms operating in the Pearl River Delta (PRD).

This objective is achieved through two Wholly Foreign Owned
Enterprises (WFOEs) in the PRD - Productivity (Dongguan) Consulting
Co. Ltd., and Productivity (Shenzhen) Consulting Co. Ltd. incorporated
in 2004.

Productivity (Holdings) Limited
Board of Directors

Mr Willy Lin (Chairman of the Board), Mr Mohamed D. Butt, Ms Annie
Choi, Mr Sunny Tan, Mr Patrick Wong and Mr Emil Yu.

Productivity (Dongguan) Consulting Co. Ltd.
Board of Directors

Mr Edmond Lai (Chairman of the Board), Mr Mohamed D. Butt,
Dr Lawrence Cheung, Mr Terrence He, Ms Vivian Lin and Mr Jeffrey Sit.

Productivity (Shenzhen) Consulting Co. Ltd.
Board of Directors

Mr Edmond Lai (Chairman of the Board), Mr Mohamed D. Butt,
Dr Lawrence Cheung, Mr Terrence He, Ms Vivian Lin and Mr Jeffrey Sit.

HKPC Technology (Holdings) Co. Ltd.

HKPC Technology (Holdings) Co. Ltd. (HKPCT) was established on
1 September 2004 as a vehicle for the commercialisation of HKPC’s
patents, technologies and project deliverables with market potential,
as well as an entity entering into contracts on consultancy and support
services to business, industry and/or enterprises. The Company aims to
develop a new technology-based generation through providing a more
direct and effective avenue to turn R&D deliverables into products.

During the year, nine marketing events were held to promote 15
technologies developed by HKPC that are ready for commercialisation
with industry. The events drew participants from 80 companies.
Indications of interest were followed up to transfer the technology
solutions to industry, so that more sectors could benefit from HKPC’s
development effort.

Board of Directors

Mr Willy Lin (Chairman of the Board), Mr Mohamed D. Butt, Ms Annie
Choi, Mr Paul Poon and Mr Patrick Wong.

As of 31 March 2019

% # ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19
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MRS

Financial Review

The consolidated accounts for the year ended 31 March 2019 of Hong
Kong Productivity Council and its subsidiaries have been audited by
the external auditor (Ernst & Young) with a clean audit opinion. Extracts
of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated
Income and Expenditure Account and Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income are set out in the following pages.

The full text of the “Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements” is
available on HKPC'’s website: www.hkpc.org

4£ENR HKPC

29



30

im e B BN R

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

201943 A31H 31March2019

2019 2018
BT BT
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Y - BEFRE Property, plant and equipment 220,069 221,399
B EE Intangible assets 6,446 8,524
B N R Interest in an associate 1,559 1,553
EMEEEAGT Total non-current assets 228,074 231,476
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FEWERTR « TENFIE RIZ® Accounts receivable, prepayments and deposits 118,387 69,107
BREE Contract assets 40,517 -
Be - BITFERREBIFR Cash, bank balances, and fixed deposits 408,113 344,724
MEVEESR Total current assets 567,017 413,831
nEBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
FERTRR TR R FERT B F Accounts payable and accruals 108,858 246,678
BRAE Contract liabilities 247,358 -
JESTH & A RIRRIE Amounts due to associates 1,098 811
FERTIE Tax payable 6 307
mBAESE Total current liabilities 357,320 247,796
RENEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 209,697 166,035
FRE Net assets 437,771 397,511
wEs TOTAL FUNDS
SENREIEERE S R Capital subvention fund and reserves
attributable to the Council 435,736 395,832
IR AR R M 2 Non-controlling interests 2,035 1,679
wES Total funds 437,771 397,511
4 E 1/ HKPC % 38 ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19
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Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account

#HZ2019F3 A31 HILFEE Year ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018
BT T BT
HK$’°000 HK$’000
WA INCOME
KR RS A B Government subvention for recurrent activities 239,424 223294
ARAS WA Service income 468,285 481,679
EAA Otherincome 13,906 11,198
FE(GHR & A RFE Share of profit of an associate 6 8
721,621 716,179
X EXPENDITURE
B HrE Staff emoluments (348,530) (348,346)
Hfthz Other expenses (300,224) (317,412)
BRBE AT B R SURPLUS BEFORE TAX 72,867 49,921
FriSt Income tax expense (251) (248)
72,616 49,673
HEREHSEA Transfer from capital subvention fund 12,147 14,649
FRER SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 84,763 64,322
ERER Attributable to:
HEENR The Council 84,298 64,167
FEVE AR AR PR A Non-controlling interests 465 155
84,763 64,322
£ # ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 4+ E N/ HKPC
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

B ZE2019F3 A31 HILFE Year ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018
BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FREH SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 84,763 64,322
HipZEKE~ (E18) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
AR E R ENFER IR Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may be
BREMEMmEmkE/ (BE) : reclassified to income and expenditure account
in subsequent periods:
g hE A\RAFE ([FE]) Exchange differences on translation of financial statements
¥BREANELER of operations in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) (807) 1,174
FNTHEIN R E 5 RHE Reclassification adjustment for a foreign operation
deregistered during the year - (219)
FRHMEEKE/ (FHB) (BE) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR,
NET OF TAX (807) 955
FREEKSE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 83,956 65,277
HER Attributable to:
KEENR The Council 83,600 64,966
AR AR R fE 2 Non-controlling interests 356 311
83,956 65,277
4 E 1/ HKPC % 38 ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19
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BIRAENRS

Independent Auditor’s Report
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To the members of Hong Kong Productivity Council
(Incorporated in Hong Kong under the Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong Productivity
Council (the “Council”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 5 to 52,
which comprise the consolidated and the Council’s statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated income and expenditure account,
the consolidated and the Council’s statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in funds and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Group and the Council as at 31 March 2019, and of the
Group and the Council’s financial performance and the Group’s cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Productivity Council Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management of the Council for the
consolidated financial statements

Management of the Council are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance, and for such
internal control as management of the Council determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management of the Council
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management of the Council either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
so.

Management of the Council are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging its
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 18 of the Hong
Kong Productivity Council Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
management of the Council.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the management of the Council’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

£ ENRHKPC
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central
Hong Kong

6 September 2019
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ne M BIRRER
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2019 ¥ 3 A 31 H 31 March 2019

2019 2018
B3 BE¥T T PEEEF T
Notes HK$’000 HKS$000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
W - BB R Property, plant and equipment 4 220,069 221,399
B AE Intangible assets 5 6,446 8,524
kNS b e Interest in an associate 7 1,559 1,553
EMEEEAE Total non-current assets 228,074 231,476
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FEWERSR - TR B R iRe Accounts receivable, prepayments and deposits 8 118,387 69,107
BREE Contract assets 9 40,517 -
Re - |ITFERERER Cash, bank balances, and fixed deposits 10 408,113 344,724
mBEEAE Total current assets 567,017 413,831
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
FERTERR R ERT & A Accounts payable and accruals 11 108,858 246,678
BRBEE Contract liabilities 12 247,358 -
FEIS R A FIRIE Amounts due to associates 13 1,098 811
FERHITE Tax payable 22(c) 6 307
neaEaE Total current liabilities 357,320 247,796
REEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 209,697 166,035
FEE Net assets 437,771 397,511
mEs TOTAL FUNDS
HENRBEIGAREYN S RFE Capital subvention fund and reserves
attributable to the Council 435,736 395,832
eI AR AR SR A 2 Non-controlling interests 14(d) 2,035 1,679
BES Total funds 14 437,771 397,511

HEENBR 2019 9 A 6 BN RTATEE I ©
Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 6 September 2019.

MER

Willy Lin Sun Mo
Ez

Chairman

pi

Patrick Wong Chi Kwong

Bl

Deputy Chairman

FREF S ANMEBARBEHERN—#D -

The notes on pages 12 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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BN

Statement of Financial Position

2019 %3 A 31 H 31 March 2019

2019 2018
FisE BET T BT
Notes HK$’000 HKS$000
FREEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
W - BB Property, plant and equipment 4 219,099 220,776
EBILEE Intangible assets 5 6,384 8,481
RHEBARIMKRE Investments in subsidiaries 6 18,722 18,722
244,205 247,979
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FEUERR - AR RIERIES Accounts receivable, prepayments and deposits 8 117,886 68,087
BREE Contract assets 9 40,517 -
FEURBT B A RI5RIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 13 1,136 1,394
Be - RITFEAREEHRER Cash, bank balances, and fixed deposits 10 387,540 321,694
547,079 391,175
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
FERTRR R R BT B A Accounts payable and accruals 11 105,241 239,687
ABHBE Contract liabilities 12 247,343 -
FERTI B A RIFE Amounts due to subsidiaries 13 11,132 10,887
363,716 250,574
REEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 183,363 140,601
FEE Net assets 427,568 388,580
wEe TOTAL FUNDS 14 427,568 388,580

EENBR20195F 9 A 6 BRI A2 »
Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 6 September 2019.

HER
Willy Lin Sun Mo

T

Chairman

Patrick Wong Chi Kwong

F/E

Deputy Chairman

122 5F 52 BN B AR oK —#D o

The notes on pages 12 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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mo W ERE

Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account

# £ 2019 %3 A 31 HILFE Year ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018
B 5 BT T PEEEF T
Notes HK$’000 HKS$000
'ON INCOME

LEIMEEBNBUTE B Government subvention for recurrent activities 15 239,424 223,294
BRASUA Service income 16 468,285 481,679
EAbUA Other income 17 13,906 11,198
JEA5 Bgh & 2 BB Share of profit of an associate 7 6 8
721,621 716,179

] EXPENDITURE
BEHE Staff emoluments 18 (348,530) (348,846)
Hih Other expenses 21 (300,224) (317,412)
FRBi AT B R SURPLUS BEFORE TAX 72,867 49,921
TSt Income tax expense 22(a) (251) (248)
72,616 49,673
WEREHSEA Transfer from capital subvention fund 14(a) 12,147 14,649
FREEH SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 84,763 64,322

FER Attributable to:
EENR The Council 14(b) 84,298 64,167
SRR AR SR b Non-controlling interests 14(d) 465 155
84,763 64,322

E12EF 52 AN BAMERRN—H5 -
The notes on pages 12 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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RS EZEWNER
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

# Z 2019 %3 A 31 HILFE Year ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018
B¥TT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
FREL SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 84,763 64,322
Hib2mEUWE (BE) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
ARERERENREERE Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may be
iR B mEMmEAEKE S (BE) reclassified to income and expenditure account
in subsequent periods:
BERE AR ([FEH]) Exchange differences on translation of financial statements
¥BRENENER of operations in the People’s Republic of China (‘PRC”) (807) 1,174
FRTHEINEBHET D EAE Reclassification adjustment for a foreign operation
deregistered during the year - (219)
FREMEEKE (BER) (FHE) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR,
NET OF TAX (807) 955
FRE2EKEE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 83,956 65,277
mER Attributable to:
EENR The Council 83,600 64,966
FEIE AR AR SR A A Non-controlling interests 356 311
83,956 65,277

F12EFE 5 B BEAMBERERA—EH -

The notes on pages 12 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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FEHNER
Statement of Comprehensive Income

# £ 2019 %3 A 31 HILFE Year ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018
PaE BET T BT T
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
WA INCOME
LEIMEEBNBUTE B Government subvention for recurrent activities 15 239,424 223,294
BRASUA Service income 16 459,189 477,471
EAbUA Other income 17 13,535 10,204
712,148 710,969
X EXPENDITURE
B EHE Staff emoluments 18 (340,544) (341,415)
Hibz Other expenses 21 (301,067) (322,292)
70,537 47,262
WEXREHSEA Transfer from capital subvention fund 14(a) 12,147 14,649
FRBHEZEKE SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 14(b) 82,684 61,911

F 12252 ANITEEARERERN — 25 -

The notes on pages 12 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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meETRER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Funds

# Z 2019 %3 A 31 HILFE Year ended 31 March 2019

BRREENR
Attributable to the Council
&x 2R
-k BA RRER
Capital ENRE BERE Non- oy b
subvention Revenue Exchange &5 controlling Total
fund reserve reserve Total interests funds
E8TR BT E8TR EBTR EETR BETR
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
R01TE4 R 1BMES At LApril 2017 147367 196,476 1672 35,515 1,368 346,883
EREH Surplus for the year - 64,167 - 64,167 155 64,302
EREMZERE Other comprehensive
income for the year:
HERERBREN Exchange difference on
EREZ translation of financial
statements of operations
inthe PRC - - 1,018 1,018 156 1174
EmEmNERY Reclassification adjustment for a
ENERE foreign operation deregistered
during the year - - (219) (219) - (219
ERZENELE Total comprehensive income
forthe year - 64,167 799 04,966 31 65,271
EXEBEEE (M 14) Movement in capital subvention fund
(note 14(a)) (14,649 - - (14,649) - (14,649
R018F3 A3 BAEH At31March 2018 132,718 260,643 2411 395,832 1679 397,511
R84 1BMER At 1 April 2018 (as originally presented) 132,718 260,643 2,471 395,832 1,679 397,511
(RASIE)
FEREBREEN Effect of adoption of HKFRS 15

E15% 22 (Wi 23) (note23) - (31,549) - (31,549) - (31,549)
R854 R 1BMER At 1 April 2018 (as restated)

(EE51) 132,718 229,094 2471 364,283 1,679 365,962
FRAER Surplus for the year - 84,298 - 84,298 465 84,763
EREt2ElE Other comprehensive

income for the year:
HEREEBERN Exchange difference on
EXEE translation of financial
statements of operations
inthe PRC - - (698) (698) (109) (807)
EnzEkGEE Total comprehensive income
forthe year - 84,298 (698) 83,600 356 83,956
EXEBEEE (i 14) Movement in capital subvention fund
(note 14(g)) (12,147) = = (12,147) = (12,147)
R19F3 A31 BRER At 31 March 2019 120,571 313,392 1,113 435,736 2,035 31,111

FREF 52 AN BARERERN 7 -

The notes on pages 12 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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mEREMRER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

# £ 2019 %3 A 31 HILFE Year ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018
B 5 BT T PEEEF T
Notes HK$’000 HKS$000
RETDHEENRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
AR 2R Surplus before tax 72,867 49,921
HEIE Adjustments for:
FE(REE R RFE Share of profit of an associate (6) (8)
FLEWA Interest income 17 (2,146) (973)
M - BERENLEEE Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 21 793 96
e Depreciation 4 43,899 36,531
#iE Amortisation 5 4,487 4,466
FEW R TR B R B 1R E e Reversal of provision for impairment
loss of accounts receivable 8 - (40)
EEEERE Provision for expected credit loss 8 57 -
TIHE ARG Provision for deregistration expenses 348 -
120,299 89,993
FEURBRR - TR RIE R Increase in accounts receivable, prepayments
HoAh pE U ERIBAE N and deposits 27 (42,248) (7,926)
BREERD Decrease in contract assets 4,389 -
SRIBERHD, () Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash (37,940) 16,784
EHBBEEM Increase in contract liabilities 73,031 -
FERTBRFR N FERHE A, Oid) Increase/(decrease) in accounts
payable and accruals 27 (46,562) 16,606
WEEENES Cash generated from operations 70,969 115,457
BB SR PRC corporate income tax paid 22(c) (552) (120)
KEEBHEENRESREFE Net cash flows from operating activities 70,417 115,337
RETBHELENRERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BUFIE Interest received 2,146 973
g =@ A A - FEERTTER Increase in fixed deposits with original maturities
over 3 months at acquisition (238,343) (240,542)
=18 A LA L BifF sk B HA P15 5018 Proceeds from matured fixed deposits with
original maturities over 3 months at acquisition 193,467 224,144
HEME - BE RGNS HIE Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 32 5
BEEYIX - REMHRE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (43,435) (60,622)
BEELEE Purchase of intangible assets (2,412) (5,838)
HEFREFEANRSREFE Net cash flows used in investing activities (88,545) (81,880)
ReRALEEWEM (D) NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
e AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (18,128) 33457
Re RIReFBMERVIAREE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 117,676 83,010
MERE T L Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (1,299) 1,209
ReRESEEYHRGBEHE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 98,249 117,676
RERREZEYREIN ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
WITEREES Cash at bank and on hand 10 98,249 117,676

F 122552 ANHTEE AR REN —#5 o

The notes on pages 12 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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im o A R R MY EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

# %2019 3 A31 AL 31 March 2019

1. £EIRMEEER

EEEENRER([EENR]) ) R—RETEB#

& R196T FIRB(CEBEENRERIEH) Ak ze

EENBEMPEEMESEL NI AR B
BRIEZ RIS HEENKE -

EENRREMBLR(SHE£E]) HEEEBZT
RERSEES  SBMEAEMNBER  XEBH
BYERED) AR REEERSNETH
EEENOEE -

1. Council and Group Information

The Council is a subvented body corporate established in 1967 under the Hong
Kong Productivity Council Ordinance. The address of its registered office and
principal place of operations is at HKPC Building, 78 Tat Chee Avenue, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Council and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group”) are to promote increased productivity, encourage the more efficient
utilization of resources, and to advise measures designed to increase productivity
via development or dissemination of programmes, methods or techniques for the
business sectors in Hong Kong.

B AREM Information about subsidiaries
EENRWNBARMEBNT: Particulars of the Council’s subsidiaries are as follows:
AR ERTR £8 HEE
EELE HREX ERER hBEEE F Bl R
Place of Particulars Group’s Held AEHEE  ETEEE
218 incorporation of issued and effective by the Held by Principal
Name and operations paid up capital interest Council  subsidiaries  activities
HENEHL B 7% 10,000 7T 100% 100% - BEEENRER
(%) BRAR Hong Kong HK$10,000 ZFEEKR
HKPC Bl
Technology (Holdings) Commercialisation
Company Limited of patents project
deliverables of
HKPC
HEN &k & 20,000,000 7T 100% 100% - REER
(17R) BRAR Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 Investment holding
Productivity
(Holdings) Limited
EEN (B3 H 75 5,000,000 7T 100% - 100%  EER RIEHIR
EABRAR PRC HK$5,000,000 Consultancy and
Productivity training services
(Dongguan) Consulting
Co. Ltd.*

EED ORI H 755 1,610,000 7T 100% - 100% BRI REIIRSE
ERBRAR PRC HK$1,610,000 Consultancy and
Productivity training services
(Shenzhen) Consulting

Co. Ltd.*

RYRBEEN H AR 1,540,000 7T 64.94% - 64.94% AR RIFHIARS
HiERAR PRC RMB1,540,000 Consultancy and
Shenzhen SZ- training services

HK Productivity
Foundation Co. Ltd. *
RYRBEEN H AR 50,0007T 64.94% - 100%  3EHIIRR
EHEIA L PRC RMB50,000 Training services
Shenzhen SZ-
HK Productivity
Foundation

Training Institute *

i HBARME B RERFLERA2018F12 A31

£ ENRHKPC

*  Thesubsidiaries have their financial accounting period ended on 31 December 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#ZE 2019 F3 A 31 HILFE 31 March 2019

2.1 Statement of Compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance. They have been prepared on a going
concern basis, under the historical cost convention and are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HKS”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except where
otherwise indicated.

2.2 Basis of Preparation

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Council and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2019. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Council. Control is achieved when the Group
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee).

When the Council has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting
or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a)  thecontractual arrangements with the other vote holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  theGroup’svoting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Council, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Income and expenditure and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the Council and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described in the accounting policy for subsidiaries above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-
controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in
equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in
profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or revenue reserve, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

£ ENRHKPC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Z 2019 %3 A31 HLLFE 31 March 2019
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£ ENRHKPC

2.2 Basis of Preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

In the Council’s statement of financial position, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses.

2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first time for

the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15

Clarification to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28

2014-2016 Cycle

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the
adoption of the above new and revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial
effect on the financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement and introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities; impairment for financial
assets; and general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied the classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment) of HKFRS 9 retrospectively as at 1 April 2018 (date of initial application)
to instruments that have not been derecognised as at 1 April 2018 and has not
applied the requirements to instruments that have already been derecognised as at
1 April 2018. The difference between the carrying amounts as at 31 March 2018 and
the carrying amounts as at 1 April 2018 is recognised in the opening revenue reserve
and other components of equity as at 1 April 2018, without restating comparative
information.

Changes to classification and measurement

On 1 April 2018, the Council’s management has assessed which business models
apply to the financial assets held by the Group and has classified its financial
instruments into the appropriate HKFRS 9 categories. All of the Group’s financial
assets as at 1 April 2018, including deposits and other receivables, cash, bank
balances and fixed deposits, are recognised as financial assets at amortised cost.

There has been no impact on the Group’s accounting for financial liabilities as the
new requirements under HKFRS 9 only affect the accounting for financial liabilities
that are designated at fair value through profit or loss and the Group does not have
any such liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#ZE 2019 F3 A 31 HILFE 31 March 2019

2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)
Changes to the impairment model
(a) Accounts receivable

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for expected credit
losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected losses for accounts receivable. To measure the expected credit
losses, accounts receivable have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics. Future cash flows for each group of receivables are estimated
on the basis of historical loss experience, adjusted to reflect the effects of
current conditions as well as forward looking information. Management has
closely monitored the credit qualities and the collectability of the accounts
receivable. Accounts receivable in dispute are assessed individually for
impairment to determine whether specific loss allowance provisions are
required. The adoption of the simplified expected credit loss approach under
HKFRS 9 has not resulted in any additional impairment loss for accounts
receivable as at 1 April 2018.

(b) Contract assets and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost

For contract assets and other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
including financial assets included in prepayments and deposits, the
expected credit loss is based on the 12-month expected credit loss. This
represents the portion of lifetime expected credit loss that results from
default events on the financial instruments that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime expected credit loss. Management has closely monitored the credit
qualities and the collectability of contract assets and other financial assets at
amortised cost and considers that the expected credit loss is mimimal as at 1
April 2018.

As a result of the application of HKFRS 9, the Group has changed its accounting
policies with respect to financial instruments, as further explained in note 2.5 to the
financial statements.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11 Construction Contracts, HKAS 18
Revenue and related interpretations and it applies, with limited exceptions, to all
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15, establishes a new five-
step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services
to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach
for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of
total revenue, information about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key judgements and estimates.
The disclosures are included in notes 3 and 16 to the financial statements. As a
result of the application of HKFRS 15, the Group has changed the accounting policy
with respect to revenue recognition in note 2.5 to the financial statements.

£ ENRHKPC
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2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified retrospective method of
adoption. Under this method, the standard can be applied either to all contracts
at the date of initial application or only to contracts that are not completed at
this date. The Group has elected to apply the standard to contracts that are not
completed as at 1 April 2018.

The cumulative effect of the initial application of HKFRS 15 was recognised as an
adjustment to the opening balance of revenue reserve as at 1 April 2018. Therefore,
the comparative information was not restated and continues to be reported under
HKAS 11, HKAS 18 and related interpretations.

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial statement line item was
affected as at 1 April 2018 as a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15:

£® EENR
i CRA) i G
The Group The Council
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
BT IT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
EE Assets
Bt RERIES Prepayments and deposits 7,153 7,153
BHEE Contract assets 44,906 44906
BERRE Total assets 52,059 52,059
8f& Liabilities
FERERFRIESTER Other payables and accruals (90,719) (89,970)
GHEE Contract liabilities 174,327 173,578
BEEE Total liabilities 83,608 83,608
waes Total funds
SENRBEEEAREN® RFHHE Capital subvention fund and reserves
attributable to the Council (31,549) -
wE® Total funds (31,549) (31,549

TR IRAE B ISR ELERE 155 E 7 2019 F
3A31HEEZE2019F3 31 HILFE Z R85k

EMHE BAEMBHREENFE 1S EHM2EIK
§&$%IE’J%«% BREARBMARSREWETE.
B RREE BB HREEAFISHARZS
B M B RERE W B RN E BB aR 5248
FBISHEAR .

£ ENRHKPC

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial statement line item was
affected as at 31 March 2019 and for the year ended 31 March 2019 as a result of
the adoption of HKFRS 15. The adoption of HKFRS 15 has had no impact on other
comprehensive income or on the Group’s operating, investing and financing cash
flows. The first column shows the amounts recorded under HKFRS 15 and the
second column shows what the amounts would have been had HKFRS 15 not been
adopted:



BUKHENHRS RIS INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018-19

2.3 S BERRKEZ2B ()

EBPBREEAEIREFESIBA

Ime MBI RM 5T
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#ZE 2019 F3 A 31 HILFE 31 March 2019

2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

(#8)
BZE2019F3 A3 HILFE 2 A WA R HERP Consolidated income and expenditure account for the year ended 31 March 2019:
BREUTEER S
Amounts prepared under
BEERE
BRMEHRE MR & 2R #m, GBd)
RIS 155K Previous Increase/
HKFRS 15 HKFRS (decrease)
BT T BT T BT T
HK$’°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
A Income 721,621 754,072 (32,451)
T Expenditure 648,754 699,912 (51,158)
REFEHF SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 84,763 66,056 18,707
BB Attributable to:
HENR The Council 84,298 65,591 18,707
FEFERR AR R A Non-controlling interests 465 465 -
84,763 66,056 18,707
BZE 2019F3 A1 AIEFE AR IR - Income and expenditure account for the year ended 31 March 2019:
REATEZAERZSHE
Amounts prepared under
BEEE
ERMBRE B R 28 #in GRA)
AERIZE 1557 Previous Increase/
HKFRS 15 HKFRS (decrease)
BT T BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
A Income 712,148 744,381 (32,233)
= Expenditure 641,611 692,551 (50,940)
RE SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 82,684 63,977 18,707

£ ENRHKPC
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2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

BRAVBRELEREISEELELIWA

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

R2019F 3 A31 HIEFE 2 A MR -

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019:

BIEBUATEER S
Amounts prepared under
BEERR
BERUHRE BA R 52 A 2, Gh2)
RIS 1558 Previous Increase/
HKFRS 15 HKFRS (decrease)
BT T BT T BET T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEUERTR « TESFRIERIZE  Accounts receivable, prepayments
and deposits 118,387 105,530 12,857
EHEE Contract assets 40,517 = 40,517
BELBTE Total assets 795,091 741,717 53,374
FERERR R ERTER Accounts payable and accruals 108,858 290,000 (181,142)
ARBE Contract liabilities 247,358 - 247,358
BfERsE Total liabilities 357,320 291,104 66,216
FEE Net assets 437,771 450,613 (12,842)
HENREIEER Capital subvention fund and reserves
BBhe Ri#E attributable to the Council 435,736 448,578 (12,842)
FEIE AR AR SR A 2 Non-controlling interests 2,035 2,035 -
wEg Total funds 437,771 450,613 (12,842)
FR2019F 3 A31 BIEFE 2 IR - Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019:
BIEUTEAGER SR
Amounts prepared under
BEEE
BERMBRE BIIRE R #in, (F4)
EERISE 15 5% Previous Increase/
HKFRS 15 HKFRS (decrease)
BT B¥T T BT
HK$’°000 HK$’°000 HK$’000
FEWER « BN FRIBRIES Accounts receivable, prepayments
and deposits 117,886 105,029 12,857
BREE Contract assets 40,517 - 40,517
BERRE Total assets 791,284 737,910 53,374
FERBRSR R IERT & A Accounts payable and accruals 105,241 286,368 (181,127)
EHaE Contract liabilities 247,343 = 247,343
BEEE Total liabilities 363,716 297,500 66,216
FAE Net assets 427,568 440,410 (12,842)
wEg Total funds 427,568 440,410 (12,842)
*E DR HKPC
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2.4 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new or revised HKFRSs, that have been
issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation*

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 16 Leases*

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of Material?

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures*

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

Annual Improvements

2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11, HKAS 12
and HKAS 23!

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

So far the Group considers that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s or Council’s financial statements, except for HKFRS 16 Leases.

HKFRS 16 was issued in May 2016 and replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating
Leases - Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes
two recognition exemptions for lessees that they can elect as practical expedients
- leases of low-value assets and short-term leases (i.e., where the lease term is 12
months or less).

£ ENRHKPC
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2.4 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make
lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use
the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-
of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property in HKAS 40 Investment Property and to which the fair value
model in applied, or relates to a class of property, plant and equipment to which
the revaluation model in applied and the lessee elects to apply that model to
the right-of-use asset. The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the
interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be
required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. HKFRS 16 also requires lessees to
make more extensive disclosures than under HKAS 17. The Group will adopt HKFRS
16 on 1 April 2019. The Group plans to use the exemptions allowed by the standard
on lease contracts whose lease terms end within 12 months as of the date of initial
application. During the year, the Group has performed an assessment on the impact
of adoption of HKFRS 16. The Group has estimated that right-of-use assets of
HK$298,000 and lease liabilities of HK$298,000 will be recognised at 1 April 2019.

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(@) Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Council, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business combination, the
Group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position within total funds, separately from funds attributable to the Council. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income and expenditure account and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as an allocation of the total surplus or deficit and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling interests and the
Council. Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as reserve transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
total funds to reflect the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made
to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

(b) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the Council has significant influence,
but not control or joint control, over its management, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost
of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post-
acquisition change in the Group’s share of the associate’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment. Any acquisition-date excess over cost,
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the associate and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated income
and expenditure account, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-
tax items of the associate’s other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group
does not recognise further losses except to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal and constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment under
the equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in the income and expenditure account. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when significant influence is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.

(c) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Hong Kong Productivity Council Building 50 years
(“HKPC Building”)

Leasehold improvements
- Office 10years
- Non-office 3years

Furniture and equipment 3to 10 years

£ ENRHKPC
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

(c) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the income
and expenditure account on the date of retirement or disposal.

(d) Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise computer software. Computer software costs are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software and are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation of computer
software is charged to the income and expenditure account on a straight-line basis
over the assets’ estimated useful lives of 3 years.

(e) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contains
a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a
specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a
series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Other leases are classified as operating leases, with the
following exception:

- Land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value of which
cannot be measured separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held under
a finance lease, unless the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease
was first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

(ii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to the income and expenditure account in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in the income and
expenditure account as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to the income and expenditure account in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease term.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

(f) Impairment of Assets
(i)  Impairment of investment in equity securities

Investments in equity securities that are stated at cost or amortised cost are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the investes;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments by the investee;

- it becoming probable that the investee will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have an adverse effect on the investee; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in the
investee below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and recognised as
follows:

- For investments in subsidiaries and an associate (including those recognised
using the equity method), the impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment with its carrying amount in
accordance with note 2.5(f)(iii). The impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note 2.5(f)(iii).

(ii) Impairment of accounts receivable

Policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018

The Group assesses an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments stated at cost
or amortised cost. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12
months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required
for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

(f)  Impairment of Assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of accounts receivable (continued)

Policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018 (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable
and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing component
or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of
a significant financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018

Accounts receivable that were stated at cost or amortised cost were reviewed at the
end of each reporting period to determine whether there was objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment included observable data that came
to the attention of the Group about one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments by the debtor;

- it becoming probable that the debtor would enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment that had an adverse effect on the debtor.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

(f)  Impairment of Assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of accounts receivable (continued)

Policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018 (continued)

If any such evidence existed, any impairment loss was determined and recognised
as follows:

- For accounts receivables and other receivables carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss was measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting was material. This assessment was made collectively where
financial assets share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and had not been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which were assessed for impairment collectively were
based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreased and the
decrease could be linked objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss was reversed through the income and
expenditure account. A reversal of an impairment loss should not result in the
asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses were written off against the corresponding assets directly,
except for impairment losses recognised in respect of accounts receivable, whose
recovery was considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses for doubtful debts were recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group was satisfied that recovery was remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
was written off against accounts receivable directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly were recognised in the income and
expenditure account.

(iii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to identify indications that the property, plant and equipment may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may

have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

(f)  Impairment of Assets (continued)
(iii) Impairment of other assets (continued)
- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell
and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income and expenditure account if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value-in-use, if
determinable.

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of an impairment
loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to the income and expenditure account in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

(g) Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payable, contract liabilities,
accruals and other payables,

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated income and
expenditure account.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

(h) Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts.

(i)  Accounts payable and accruals

Accounts payable and accruals are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(j) Cashand cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months
of original maturities at acquisition.

(k) Employee benefits
(i)  Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

(ii) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated
at their present values.

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result of

voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is without realistic
possibility of withdrawal.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

() Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in the income and expenditure account except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in funds, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in funds, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary
differences respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred
tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits. Apart from
differences which arise on initial recognition of assets and liabilities, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

(m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group or the Council has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(n) Income recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the income and expenditure, if applicable, can be measured reliably, income is
recognised in the income and expenditure account as follows:
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

(n) Income recognition (continued)
(i)  Government subventions

Government subventions for recurrent activities are recognised as income in
the income and expenditure account when there is reasonable assurance that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching with them and that the
subvention will be received. Government subventions that compensate the Group
for expenditure incurred are recognised as income in the income and expenditure
account on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenditure are
incurred. Unspent subventions for recurrent activities arising in the financial
year will be retained by the Council as reserves up to a limit as agreed with the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“the Government”)
(see note 15). Amount in excess of the limit will be returned to the Government in
the following financial year.

(i) Contract revenue

(a) Revenue from contracts with customers (applicable from 1
April 2018)

Revenue from service contracts is recognised when control of services is transferred
to the customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the amount
of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the customer
a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services to the customer
for more than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which provides the Group a
significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Service income is generally recognised over time, using an input method to measure
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the service, because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group or the
Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date. The input method recognises revenue based on the proportion of the actual
costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs for satisfaction of the services.
Depending on the terms of individual contract of services, when the Group has not
met the criteria in paragraph 35 of HKFRS 15, service income is recognised at a point
in time when control of the service is transferred to the customer.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

(n) Income recognition (continued)
(ii) Contract revenue (continued)
(b) Service contracts (applicable before 1 April 2018)

Service contracts were contracts for the provision of services. Anticipated losses on
contracts were fully provided when it was probable that total contract costs would
exceed total contract revenue.

Service contracts in progress at the end of the reporting period were recorded at the
net amount of costs incurred plus recognised surplus less recognised losses and
progress billings, and are presented in the statement of financial position as the
“Deferred income” (as a liability), as applicable. Progress billings not yet paid by the
customer were included under “Accounts receivable, prepayments and deposits”.
Amounts received before the related work was performed are presented as “Deferred
income” under “Accounts payable and accruals”.

Revenue from service contracts was recognised using the percentage of completion
method when the contracts have progressed to stage where an outcome could be
estimated realiably. Revenue from service contracts was measured by reference to
the portion of costs incurred for work performed to the end of the reporting period
as compared to the estimated total costs to completion. When the outcome of a
service contract could not be estimated reliable, contract revenue was recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that were likely to be recoverable.

(iii) Revenue from other sources

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

(iv) Rentalincome from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in the income and
expenditure account in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in the income and expenditure account as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.

(v) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.

(o) Contract assets (applicable from 1 April 2018)

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services
transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

(p) Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 April 2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received a consideration (or an amount of consideration that
is due) from the customer. If a customer pays the consideration before the Group
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when
the paymentis made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

(g) Contract costs (applicable from 1 April 2018)

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer
are capitalised as an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract that the
entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will be used in
satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in the future.

(c)  Thecosts are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the statement of profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of the revenue to
which the asset related is recognised. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

(r) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the month are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the average rate for that month. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in the income and expenditure account.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the transactions. Statement of financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an enterprise outside Hong Kong, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences recognised in reserve which relate to that enterprise is
reclassified from reserve to the income and expenditure account when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.

(s) Capital subvention fund
The capital subvention fund accumulated from the prior years to compensate

the Group for the costs of the sub-vented assets is recognised in the income and
expenditure account over the useful lives of the sub-vented assets.

£ ENRHKPC
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

(t) Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that
person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) hassignificantinfluence over the Group; or
(i) isamember of the key management personnel of the Group;
or
(b)  thepartyis an entity where any of the following conditions applies:
(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) theentity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  theentityis controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

3. Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year, are described below.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Estimate of revenue and costs of works

Depending on the terms of individual contract of services, the Group recognises
its service income over time if the Group has met the criteria in paragraph 35 of
HKFRS 15 or at a point in time when the control of the assets is transferred to
the customer. For service income recognised over time, the Group reviews and
revises the estimates of contract revenue and contract costs prepared for each
contract as the contract progresses. Budgeted service income is determined in
accordance with the terms set out in the relevant contracts. Budgeted service
costs which mainly comprise staff costs and costs of materials are prepared by
experienced management. In order to keep the budget accurate and up-to-date, the
management conducts periodic reviews on the management budgets by comparing
the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts incurred.

4. Property, Plant and Equipment

@@ £HE (a) The Group
20193 A31H 31 March 2019
HEgF BRERRZE
EENKRE HEIR Furniture
HKPC Leasehold and g
Building improvements equipment Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
R1E : Cost:
R2018F 4 A 1H At 1 April 2018 267,784 85,973 228,182 581,939
nNE Additions - 24,887 18,548 43,435
& Disposals = (23,473) (7,810) (31,283)
MEFE Exchange adjustments - (58) (92) (150)
201943 A31H At31 March 2019 267,784 87,329 238,828 593,941
REHE - Accumulated depreciation:
7201854 A1 H At 1 April 2018 148,431 46,389 165,720 360,540
FEFE Charge for the year 5,344 15,928 22,627 43,899
&R Written back on disposals - (22,765) (7,693) (30,458)
BERE Exchange adjustments = (58) (51) (109)
MR2019%3A31H At 31 March 2019 153,775 39,494 180,603 373,872
BRMEFHE - Net book value:
7201943 A31H At 31 March 2019 114,009 47,835 58,225 220,069

£ ENRHKPC
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4. V¥ BENXRE®

(@) HEBE#H

4. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

(@) The Group (continued)

20184F3 A31H 31 March 2018
HEBTF FIENRE
EENRE WEIR Furniture
HKPC Leasehold and #agE
Building improvements equipment Total
BT BT T BETIT BT T
HKS000 HKS$’000 HK$000 HKS’000
R1E : Cost:
201744 B 1R At 1 April 2017 267,784 60,781 205,215 533,780
NE Additions - 28,450 32,172 60,622
HE Disposals - (3,345) (9,343) (12,688)
BB R Exchange adjustments - 87 138 225
2018 3 A31H At 31 March 2018 267,784 85,973 228,182 581,939
REHTE Accumulated depreciation:
M2017F 418 At 1 April 2017 143,087 37,684 155,681 336,452
FENE Charge for the year 5,344 11,951 19,236 36,531
& & E Written back on disposals - (3,329) (9,258) (12,587)
HE R Exchange adjustments - 83 61 144
MR2018F3A31H At 31 March 2018 148,431 46,389 165,720 360,540
BREDFHAE - Net book value:
R2018F 3 A31H At 31 March 2018 119,353 39,584 62,462 221,399
(b) E£EHF (b) The Council
20193 H31H 31 March 2019
HERF BERRE
EEHRE HEIR Furniture
HKPC Leasehold and B
Building improvements equipment Total
B¥TT BT T BT B¥TT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
GE Cost:
7201854 A 18 At 1 April 2018 267,784 85,066 226,741 579,591
NE Additions - 24,887 17,892 42,779
e Disposals = (23,474) (7,615) (31,089)
7201943 A31 8 At 31 March 2019 267,784 86,479 237,018 591,281
ZEE - Accumulated depreciation:
7201854818 At 1 April 2018 148,431 45,482 164,902 358,815
FEFE Charge for the year 5,344 15,928 22,400 43,672
) Written back on disposals = (22,765) (7,540) (30,305)
7201943 A31H At 31 March 2019 153,775 38,645 179,762 372,182
BRTEDFE - Net book value:
7201943 A31H At 31 March 2019 114,009 47,834 57,256 219,099
*E DR HKPC
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(b) E£EHR (b) The Council (continued)
20184F3 A31H 31 March 2018
HERF FIERHRE
FENKRE hETR Furniture
HKPC Leasehold and paka)
Building improvements equipment Total
BT T BEBTT BT BT
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000
[R1E : Cost:
M20178#E4A18 At 1 April 2017 267,784 59,961 203,920 531,665
NE Additions - 28,450 32,164 60,614
HE Disposals - (3,345) (9,343) (12,688)
20183 A31H At 31 March 2018 267,784 85,066 226,741 579,591
ZEE - Accumulated depreciation:
R2017F4 18 At 1 April 2017 143,087 36,893 155,113 335,093
FEFE Charge for the year 5,344 11,918 19,047 36,309
HIE R R Written back on disposals - (3,329) (9,258) (12,587)
20183 A31H At 31 March 2018 148,431 45,482 164,902 358,815
BRTEDFE - Net book value:
20183 A31H At 31 March 2018 119,353 39,584 61,839 220,776

£ ENRHKPC
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5. BLEE

5. Intangible Assets

20193 A31H 31 March 2019
55 EENR
The Group The Council
BT T BT
HK$’°000 HK$°000
R : Cost:
7201854 A1H At 1 April 2018 42,440 42,332
nE Additions 2,412 2,368
& Disposals (1,198) (1,198)
BEFE Exchange adjustments (7) -
201943 A31H At 31 March 2019 43,647 43,502
ZEH#EE Accumulated amortisation:
7201844 A1H At 1 April 2018 33,916 33,851
FE#H Amortisation for the year 4,487 4,465
R Written back on disposals (1,198) (1,198)
BE R Exchange adjustments (4) -
201983 A31 8 At 31 March 2019 37,201 37,118
BRTFAE ¢ Net book value:
#201943 A31H At 31 March 2019 6,446 6,384
201843 A31H 31 March 2018
3] HENR
The Group The Council
BT BT
HKS$000 HKS’000
JRME - Cost:
201744 1R At 1 April 2017 45,726 45,629
NE Additions 5,838 5,838
HeE Disposals (9,135) (9,135)
HETHE Exchange adjustments 11 -
20183 A31H At 31 March 2018 42,440 42,332
FETHE - Accumulated amortisation:
R2017F4H1H At 1 April 2017 38,580 38,541
FEEH Amortisation for the year 4,466 4,445
Suk=2 30 Written back on disposals (9,135) (9,135)
HME TR Exchange adjustments 5 -
20183 A31H At 31 March 2018 33,916 33,851
BREDFE - Net book value:
720183 A31H At 31 March 2018 8,524 8,481

BIEESEEMIT -

36 £ ENRHKPC

Intangible assets comprise computer software.
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6. Investments In Subsidiaries

EENR
The Council
2019 2018
BT T BT T
HK$’°000 HKS$’000
JEEMRRG - EBAAERTE - Unlisted shares, at cost:

)= Subsidiaries 20,010 20,010
o REEE Less: impairment loss (1,288) (1,288)
M3A31A At 31 March 18,722 18,722

SENRMNBARBERRERRNOFBET RS
B RE 1R FIABRER -

7. BEATER

Particulars of the Council’s subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting period are
disclosed in note 1 to the financial statements.

7. Interestin an Associate

55
The Group
2019 2018
BT T BB T T
HK$’°000 HKS$’000
B FEE Share of net assets 1,559 1,553
B AR E AR EBARFIFNAT Particulars of the associate as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
HKEAR
BEW
=g MR R EEITR FrERELL =
EEM I BRER Proportion
Place of Particulars of of ownership FEEK
incorporation issued and interest held by Principal
Name and operations paid up capital a subsidiary activity
EEMBEET Chongqing - Hong Kong R AREE 40% mET
{RER AR AR Productivity Promotion PRC 3,000,000 7T Inactive
Center Company Limited* RMB3,000,000

¢ RIEEBLXGET AN BB AR LK B FRA R Eopy
R B AT TR

BrENRNPBERBENT

#

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst &
Young global network

Summarised financial information of the associate:

BE aE Em 'ON Wz
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue Profit
BT BT BETT BT BT T
HK$’°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
2019 F 2019
100% 100 per cent 3,946 (49) 3,897 - 15
SEERER Group’s effective interest 1,579 (20) 1,559 = 6
2018 F 2018
100% 100 per cent 3,938 (53) 3,885 - 20
SEERER Group’s effective interest 1,575 (22) 1,553 - 8

B N RMBRMANMBREEFHEA/12A310 B
F1A1IBE3 AR Z#E AR RAEEKE
REVZBPNFEERNERRS

The financial statements of the associate have a financial year end date of 31
December and there is no material transaction between the associate and the
group companies between 1 January and 31 March.

£ ENRHKPC 37
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8. EWARM ANFERES

8. Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Deposits

&= £ENR

The Group The Council
2019 2018 2019 2018
BETT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HKS$000
FEURBR K Accounts receivable 44,657 52,568 44,441 52,479
TEfI IR Prepayments 20,605 14,006 20,442 13,449
BHIFA Contract costs 43,406 - 43,406 -
e FE i FE W KIA Deposits and other receivables 9,776 2,533 9,654 2,159
118,444 69,107 117,943 68,087
A Impairment (57) - (57) -
ik Current 118,387 69,107 117,886 68,087

(a) FEWERFURIE
SRR R EEE R DRI -

(@) Impairment of accounts receivable

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of accounts receivable are as
follows:

EEREENR
The Group and the Council

2019 2018

B¥T T BT

HK$’000 HKS'000

w4 A1H At 1 April = 40
VERIERES Impairment losses 57 -
LA Reversal - (40)
M3A31H At 31 March 57 -

RETRE 2B RERKERTERETPHMR
BRRBERB 2D -

HZE2019F3A31 ALFERESTBIK
HREERZE 9 SERE THIRIE

BEDTREZNSREAMERREBERER
HEEEBERMETT  BEXIRERBLERER
ZNREFHERZ SR E (40 FP AR
) o ZAERMBIEINEER  SERREAR R
SRMATESARBEEM - BRI SRR
IR 2 BIRAISEE# - — R = EBR R NE
HAiB— I BB AR TR TIAMEE -

£ ENRHKPC

The individually impaired receivables covered in the allowance account mainly
relate to customers with disputes on service delivery.

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31 March 2019

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision
matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns
(i.e., by customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off
if past due for more than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.
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8. Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Deposits
(continued)

(@) Impairment of accounts receivable (continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group’s trade
receivables using a provision matrix:

201963 A31R As at 31 March 2019
ekl
Past due
LA 1EA —Z={8A =EARE

BN Less than 1to3 Over et

Current 1 month months 3 months Total

TREMEEEER Expected credit loss rate 0.042% 0.088% 0.121% 0.278% 0.128%
AREAE Gross carrying amount

(BETFT) (HK$’000) 19,178 7,181 5,223 13,075 44,657
TEEEEEIE Expected credit losses

(BETT) (HK$’000) 8 6 6 37 57

(b) IERIERIEIARTR

EURRNEZAHEREH - AEEENEEBR
EE— 2 RHEHESIRRE 25(a) ©

FEME R S B RS AR B AT R B FEU R R BR R
AT :

(b) Accounts receivable that are not impaired

Accounts receivable is due at the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit
policy are set out in note 25(a).

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither individually nor
collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

&8 E£ENR

The Group The Council
2019 2018 2019 2017
BT T BETIT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
BER R —{E A Less than 1 month past due 26,359 39,790 26,144 39,701
B —=={EA 1to 3 months past due 5,223 7,458 5,223 7,458
A= E A E More than 3 months past due 13,075 5,320 13,074 5,320
44,657 52,568 44,441 52,479

B AR BB I R E R R R R B S A R
FRARERBEY TP AR - RIBARER BNME
EERWREREH  MAETEERF/ZSEMA
2EUE FULEIREREL EFE 2R S AR
B -

(€) HEETREHAHEORE BREAZAH
AR A A AR 2 I AR IER — B Y B
(b B T AR A U S BE B R -

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

(C) The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the consolidated
income and expenditure account on a systematic basis that is consistent with
the pattern of the revenue to which the asset related is recognised, when the
Group satisfies performance obligations of respective service contracts.

£ ENRHKPC
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9. BHEE

9. Contract Assets

&5 *EHR
The Group The Council
2019 FF 2018 F 2019 2018 FF
3A31H 4H18 3A31H 4H1H
31 March 1 April 31 March 1 April
2019 2018 2019 2018
BT T BT T BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BRIREESLR Contract assets arising from
BB AR 75 Consultancy 39,451 44,517 39,451 44,517
ol Training 7 345 7 345
BRI IRRIE Manufacturing support 942 44 942 44
REERERE Exhibitions and study mission 117 - 117 -
EREERRE Total contract assets 40,517 44,906 40,517 44,906

BREERVIZHBHARBRE  Hil- $iE%x
EIRT HETMEESRRESREREMRR
WATER - EUERREIARK I TERR BRI 7 Rl o
MNERENEBR BRRANEEZSHESEN
D RRIERIRR -

R201963F31 B AREE 2 B SE KF R
T

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from the consultancy,
training, manufacturing support, publications and advertising and exhibitions and
study mission services as the receipt of consideration is conditional on successful
completion of performance obligation. Upon completion of performance obligation
by the customer, the amounts recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade
receivables.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets as at 31 March
2019 is as follows:

EEREENR
The Group and
the Council
2019

BT
HK$’000

Within one year

FR
E_FERENTF 2-5year

19,915
20,602

e
BHIEERRE Total contract assets 40,517

10. BE - |RITFERREHER

10. Cash, Bank Balances and Fixed Deposits

58 EENR
The Group The Council
2019 Ly 2018 2009 L, 208
BET T BT BT T BT
HK$’°000 HK$000 HK$’000 HKS$000
= A AEEE Fixed deposits with original
TE BATF R maturities over 3 months
at acquisition 138,301 93,425 131,776 86,545
RITFRME S Cash at bank and on hand 269,812 251,299 255,764 235,149
SRR ARE - Cash, bank balances
RITIFRK and fixed deposits in
SRR the statement of financial
positions 408,113 344,724 387,540 321,694
VA - g5k Balance per above 408,113 344,724 387,540 321,694
ZRBA D Restricted cash (171,563) (133,623) (171,563) (133,623)
={EAZEHE Fixed deposits with original
TE BT maturities over 3 months
at acquisition (138,301) (93,425) (131,776) (86,545)
FaReRERA Cash and cash equivalents
Re RRSEEY in the consolidated
statement of cash flows 98,249 117,676 84,201 101,526

£ ENRHKPC
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10. RE - RITERREHRFR@®)

R2019F 3 A318 £ENRMEEMNEITERFH
171,563,000 7T (2018 4F : 133,623,000 7T) 7 WM £ 1~ A
HERITEEFAER AR BB E S5 EIERMNIE
B - 1H B 5EAK 8 I8 B sk RS - AR E A RE S
EBEBRITEFPELNE—HREBT -

R2019F3A31R SEMNBITTEREBETNRE
ey M R 1T B9 FXIE 418,474,000 78 7T (2018 £F ¢
20,867,0007870) * ZEFRMERFEZHRBUTHE
R INEIE SR DIFE R ESE ©

11. EARARARETEA

Ime MBI RM 5T
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#ZE 2019 F3 A 31 HILFE 31 March 2019

10. Cash, Bank Balances and Fixed Deposits (continued)

Cash at bank of the Council and the Group as at 31 March 2019 of HK$171,563,000
(2018: HK$133,623,000) is placed in separate project bank accounts and restricted
for the purpose of projects governed by respective Government funding schemes.
Any unspent funding, together with the interest income generated in project
bank accounts, is returned to the Government upon completion of the project or
termination of the project agreement.

Cash at bank of the Group as at 31 March 2019 includes HK$18,474,000 (2018:
HK$20,867,000) placed with banks in the PRC, the remittance of which is subject to
relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

11. Accounts Payable and Accruals

£: EENR
The Group The Council

2019 2018 2019 2018

BT T BT T BET T PEEEFIT

HK$’°000 HK$000 HK$’°000 HKS000

FETBRIX Trade payables 54,982 43223 54,153 43219

EIEUA Deferred income = 59,719 = 59,719

TEUER K Receipts in advance - 7,226 - 6,476
FREERE (@) Provision for annual leave

compensation (note (a)) 6,414 7,459 6,414 7,459

FEFHE R R E TR Accruals and other payables 47,462 129,051 44,674 122,814

108,858 246,678 105,241 239,687

FTEREAI AR R BE B TR — B -
(a) FRmERRE

All of the accounts payable and accruals are expected to be settled within one year.

(@) Provision for annual leave compensation

EBNEELR
The Group and the Council
2019 2018
BYTT BT
HK$’000 HKS000
MW4A18 At 1 April 7,459 10,770
BEEm Reversal of provision made (629) (2,442)
EE AR E Provision utilised (416) (869)
M3A31A At 31 March 6,414 7,459

RIBEE(ERGD) EHE- REH—FHOEESR
FEEVERFRBEBELEHELARERY) - BZt
REBAREXE - REFANEERT - MEMRES
BER: O AFRMES BIATEEE REVER(E
R ERFMEENRSIE - FREERBREHE
BEHREHRAREBEROBIEMAE

Under Chapter 4 of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, staff members who
have completed a full year of services are entitled to take at least seven days of
leave (including Sundays and Public Holidays) consecutively within one calendar
year. Any staff member who leaves his or her employment is entitled to annual leave
compensation. She/he is entitled to receive in cash the annual leave pay earned but
not utilised. Provision is made for the employees’ untaken annual leave balances at
the end of the reporting period.

£ ENRHKPC
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12. 60 EE

12. Contract Liabilities

&= *EHR
The Group The Council
2019 F 2018 4 2019 F 20184F
3HA31H 4H18 3A31H 4H1H
31 March 1 April 31 March 1 April
2019 2018 2019 2018
BET T BETFT BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
TBUL =57 B R Short-term advances received
from customers
B AR 75 Consultancy 243,088 172,648 243,073 171,899
53 Training 1,722 736 1,722 736
SR L IRRE Manufacturing support 2,548 928 2,548 928
REERERE Exhibitions and study mission - 15 = 15
AHaERE Total contract liabilities 247,358 174,327 247,343 173,578

13. EREBE ARRER B 1

Li) PNCIESSE]

JE A< B 2 N B R S FE ML S T B A B FUR R R IR
- AEE AREREEY B REA-

14, BEE

13. Amounts Due to Associates and Amounts Due

from/to Subsidiaries

Amounts due to associates and amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured,
non-interest bearing, repayable on demand and denominated in Hong Kong Dollar.

14. Total Funds

3L | *EHR
The Group The Council
2019 2018 2019 2018
BT T BT BET T BT
HK$’°000 HKS000 HK$’000 HKS’000
BEREE (KiFE () Capital subvention fund
(note (a)) 120,571 132,718 120,571 132,718
WAEBNEERE (MIFE (b))  Revenuereserve (note (b)) 313,392 260,643 306,997 255,862
433,963 393,361 427,568 388,580
BmEREE (i «©) Exchange reserve (note (c)) 1,773 2,471
435,736 395,832
FEIE AR AR SR A A Non-controlling interests
(5T (d) (note (d)) 2,035 1,679
437,771 397,511
SR . .
() EXREHE (a) Capital subvention fund
SEEMEELR
The Group and the Council
2019 2018
BT T BEBTIT
HK$’°000 HK$000
R EAY] At beginning of year 132,718 147,367
[YNLS A= Transfer to income and expenditure account (12,147) (14,649)
FREAR At end of year 120,571 132,718

£ ENRHKPC
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14, BES (%)
(b) WAREE

e B RRMEE
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14. Total Funds (continued)

(b) Revenue reserve

| EENR
The Group The Council
2019 2018 2019 2018
BT T BT B¥T T BETT
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
REAY) (B8 &%) At beginning of year

(as restated) 229,094 196,476 224,313 193,951

wET RS Transfer from income and
expenditure account 84,298 64,167 82,684 61,911
FEAR At end of year 313,392 260,643 306,997 255,862

WARBRATREEEREENBORFRS
(B51R) MaRsLe

() BmEfR#RE

This reserve was created for the purpose of recording the Group’s and the Council’s
accumulated surplus/(deficit).

(c) Exchange reserve

55
The Group
2019 2018
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$000
RERT At beginning of year 2,471 1,672
BRERBIEGEVBRERNELZR Exchange differences on translation of financial
statements of operations in the PRC (698) 1,018
FRTIHBINEBNER D RFE Reclassification adjustment for a foreign operation
deregistered during the year - (219)
REAR At end of year 1,773 2,471

BERBEERRER BRI EBIFRRMAE LR
BERZE WERRHIEE 2.5(0) PAEM ST BRI
e

(d) FFERIRERAER

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of operations outside Hong Kong. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 2.5(0).

(d) Non-controlling interests

5=

The Group
2019 2018
BYTT BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
RERY) At beginning of year 1,679 1,368
FEIERERE Share of exchange reserve (109) 156
FEREI T Share of surplus for the year 465 155
RHEIR At end of year 2,035 1,679

£ ENRHKPC
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15. BEMEBHNBUFER
FERTEEED

RIEB TR A E B E2009F 6 A22HEF R AT
BZHESE) ([Enik]) BeE £ENBAIL
BRFERNEEEYTFHEMENSBREBIER
HE THETNER ZREEKETSSNEE
NRREBYBRFEMSHNFEEBRNEELBEN
15% ° 2018/2019 F [E M T B B B 15 /R BB T ED (4
TERERPOBFIMESHEFIERIRESEYER
24,300,000 7T (2017/2018 4F [£ : 16,000,0007T) + It 5K
BTN AFEEEEY- 2018/2019¢FE’JE5UH*&%
EBh#EEE 2151181 (2017/2018 & : 2.073187T) °
EENREEESSEETERAFENUNTFE2EE)
FRATESNRFESEEE) -

2018/2019 F A E NRHNBUNE 2 SRR IRE
BT A B AFIBR (2017/2018 4 fE : R L) °

15. Government Subvention for Recurrent Activities

Annual block grant

In accordance with section 8 of the Memorandum of Administrative Arrangement
(“MAA”) dated 22 June 2009 signed between the Government and the Council, the
Council is allowed to keep any savings from its annual block grant as reserves. At
any one point in time the level of accumulated savings from the Council’s annual
block grant shall not exceed 15% of its annual block grant in the current financial
year. The government subvention for the year of 2018/2019 includes the grant from
ITF for APAS Division of HK$24.3 million (2017/2018: HK$16.0 million) which is not
classified as annual block grant. The total block grant of the Council for the year of
2018/2019 was HKS$215.1 million (2017/2018: HK$207.3 million). The annual block
grant from the Government in the current and prior years has been fully expended
by the Council in accordance with the MAA.

The annual block grant of the Council for the year of 2018/19 was entirely accounted
for as Government subvention income in the income and expenditure account
(2017/18: same).

16. FRIEWA 16. Service Income
&= EENR
The Group The Council
2019 2018 2019 2018
PEE BETT BT BT EEEFIT
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
%E’gﬁé\ﬁz Revenue from contracts
WA with customers
AR PRTS Consultancy 393,226 445461 384,130 441,253
brall Training 7,737 10,350 7,737 10,350
BUER T IR RIS Manufacturing support 23,772 20,096 23,772 20,096
HET K ES Publications and advertising 1 3 1 3
REGRERE Exhibitions and study mission 5,846 5,769 5,846 5,769
KEEFEAZ Total revenue from contracts
ABA with customers 430,582 481,679 421,486 477,471
P =E=82 Y :0) Revenue from other sources
WA
AT & BhIE B Government funded projects 37,703 - 37,703 -
468,285 481,679 459,189 477,471

(@) BRIBUAERMS

(a) Disaggregated revenue information for service income

£ EENR
The Group The Council
2019 2019
BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$°000

WA TR B Timing of revenue recognition
RE— R B At a pointin time 143,159 143,159
BERS R HERS Over time 287,423 278,327
REBEPEKZBIA Total revenue from contracts with customers 430,582 421,486

£ ENRHKPC
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16. FRFEUWA (@)

(b) TERETRARSHEERZMASE  HR
WEBMTAAANAEN:

16. Service Income (continued)

Ime MBI RM 5T
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#ZE 2019 F3 A 31 HILFE 31 March 2019

(b) Revenue recognised in the current reporting period that was included in
contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

2019 2019
&8 EENR
The Group The Council
BT B¥T T
HK$’000 HK$’°000
AR AR 75 Consultancy 66,001 66,001
Al Training 515 515
BUEE L RRT Manufacturing support 537 537
REGIERE Exhibitions and study mission 15 15
67,068 67,068

() BHEE

WARERAER— AR BRERFCREENE
T W AR BERS FIHERS - BEE IS ElB A W S R ARTS
EmEREOET —RBEREREIELELIN
L EINEA

17. HMUA

(c) Performance obligations

For service income recognised at a point in time, the performance obligation is
satisfied upon delivery of services. For service income recognised over time, the
performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are rendered. Short-term
advances are normally required before rendering the services.

17. Other Income

£65 £ EHR
The Group The Council
2019 2018 2019 2018
BETT BT T BT BT
HK$°000 HKS$000 HK$’000 HK$000
HeA Rental income 6,283 7,092 6,283 7,092
FBHA Interest income 2,146 973 2,023 859
MR Sundry income 5,477 3,133 5,229 2,253
13,906 11,198 13,535 10,204
= 3+
18. BEF & 18. Staff Emoluments
£ *EHR
The Group The Council
2019 2018 2019 2018
BETT BT T BT BT
HK$°000 HKS$000 HK$’000 HK$000
Fre ZEHm Salaries and variable pay 301,154 298,842 293,168 291,411
LM E Gratuities 2,023 1,481 2,023 1,481
BETE- ER Overtime, subsistence and
PSE-Kiiih=l other allowances 13,563 14,816 13,563 14,816
B B # B £0h Staff education allowances 434 849 434 849
BESHAN - BT Pension costs - defined
HRETE contribution plans 23,498 24,578 23,498 24,578
RN E Medical benefits scheme 7,858 8,280 7,858 8,280
348,530 348,846 340,544 341,415

B _Eaish - 18 B 37 8,492,000 7T (2018 4F ¢ 9,647,000
7o) DRt AEE R EEHRBEBRABES B (HiE21) »

In addition to the above, staff costs amounting to HKS$8,492,000 (2018:
HK$9,647,000) have been charged to project related expenses of the Group and the

Council (see note 21).

£ ENRHKPC
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19. SREEASHMH 19. Senior Management’s Remuneration

RREIE A B M EE K A E N B AR PTIER The aggregate remuneration (salaries, allowances, benefits in kind and provident
HET (e - 2L BYRAMAES HK) 5 fund contributions) received by the senior management for their services rendered

~ to the Group and the Council are listed as follows:
EEREEDR
The Group and the Council
2019 2018
BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
BB - BE Agnes Mak, Executive Director
(72017410 A 31 BEK) (Retired on 31 October 2017) 347 2,982
Mohamed Din Butt, #2&; Mohamed Din Butt, Executive Director
(720174 12 B 18 AT dn) (Appointed on 18 December 2017) 3,966 1,138
RIFS - BlAR Lawrence Cheung, Director, Technology Development
(RiEER) 3,059 2,903
AW BEE Gordon Lo, Director, Business Management
(EERE) 3,041 3,354
MBI - 2lEE Tony Lam, Director, Corporate Services
(FA20174F 4 A 21 BEER) (Resigned on 21 April 2017)
(M=) 6 325
28D, - BRI 4R EL Edmond Lai, Director, Digital
(FA20184 7 3B {Iam) (Appointed on 3 July 2018) 2,151 -
12,570 10,702

20. £EHFBEESE M E SN 20. Remuneration of Members of the Council

RER SENREEMEMEBESEKREBYERER During the year, the Chairman and other members of the Council did not receive

A E N BR BRI MUEUE M B (2018 F « &) © any remuneration for their services rendered to the Council (2018: Nil).
21. Hfttz 21. Other Expenses
£E3 *ENR
The Group The Council
2019 2018 2019 2018
BT BT BT BETIT
HK$’°000 HKS000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
—MRATHE General and administrative
expenses 41,894 37,358 38,493 34,183
EERES S Project related expenses 190,509 221,030 195,879 229,805
HEWE - WEM Loss on disposal of property,

HfEEE plant and equipment 793 9% 754 9%
wE Depreciation 43,899 36,531 43,672 36,309
B Amortisation 4,487 4,466 4,465 4,445
ZE AN S Auditor’s remuneration 919 897 441 420
IR Sundry expenses 17,723 17,034 17,363 17,034

300,224 317,412 301,067 322,292

46 £ ENRHKPC



22. FTHE

(@) AREWIRBRMIRAMASHA:

BIUZHENRSE R FRS INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018-19

Ime MBI RM 5T
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H %2019 %3 A31 ALLFE 31 March 2019

22. Income Tax

(a) Income tax in the consolidated income and expenditure account represents:

&8
The Group
2019 2018
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
ARER - FBASD Current - outside Hong Kong
FEBIE Provision for the year 251 248

BREENBEREBRIEE BRI Fe7F
HOSMmEEERIE RtBABME RGN -

AR AEENRHE BB AT REZE 201943 A31H
M 2018 F 3 A31 HIEMFEANEFERTIEF - B H#

TR BB RIS -

EENBHHEM B QR AT ER20% 20184 :

The Council is not subject to Hong Kong profits tax as the Council has been granted
exemption from all Hong Kong taxes by the Inland Revenue Department under
Section 87 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax for the Council’'s Hong Kong subsidiaries has
been made as they did not have assessable profit during the years ended 31 March
2019 and 2018.

Taxation for the Council’s Mainland subsidiaries is charged at 20% (2018: 25%).

25%) °
(b) B HEGRHLERTEELHMEE: (b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting surplus at applicable tax
rates:
£H
The Group
2019 2018
BT T BRI
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRE AT A B Surplus before taxation 72,867 49,921

AR R A E BIRE AR
SHEBRBIA RS, (B1E)
MHETIR

Notional tax on surplus/(deficit) before taxation,
calculated at rates applicable to
surplus/deficit in the jurisdictions concerned 11,852 8,317

BERBBRANTIELE Tax effect of non-taxable income (117,281) (115,548)
TR B FIE & Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 105,654 107,498
REERAAF AR IEEE Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised

O 28 3
ERAUNEFEFHEEBE Tax effect of prior years’ tax losses utilised

IR 2 (2) (22)
FRRFBIES H Actual tax expense 251 248

© HAMBRRRENTRAZD:

() Movementin tax payable in the consolidated statement of financial position:

58

The Group
2019 2018
BE¥T T BT
HK$’000 HKS000
»m4A1H At 1 April 307 179
FRERIE Provision for the year 251 248
EATH PSR PRC corporate income tax paid (552) (120)
M3A31H At 31 March 6 307

£ ENRHKPC
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22, FiEHi®)
d) EEFEEEREAE:

EREHR SEEAEBEEANTEBEBNA
554,000 70 (2018 £F : 489,000 7T) AIERR HAFAEIKINZ
LHIREIBONE AR AR K ERTFE - EEER
5 AR REEFET =5 T SR TR FE R F B Al 4K
M IEEIE - AR & BB B ERIECH 8

£ E 201943 31 BRI 2018 43 A 31 B A T HE
RHEXRERBEAE-
23. 7RiE

(a) fFREEHERMEA

720193 A31 R RERBEAABHNLEHER
RREN ) RIEEERERNT

22. Income Tax (continued)
(d)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities:

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tax losses arising in Hong Kong
of approximately HK$554,000 (2018: HK$489,000) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of a subsidiary in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of tax losses as, in the
opinion of the management, it is uncertain whether sufficient future taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

The Group has no material deferred tax liabilities requiring recognition as at 31
March 2019 and 2018.

23. Commitments

(@) Aslessee of operating leases

At 31 March 2019, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

£H

The Group
2019 2018
BE¥TT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000

Tt R EEY) Land and buildings

FIFRN Within 1 year 120 1,700
E2RESFN After 1 year but within 5 years 201 2,209
321 3,909

KREE - WA RE R WER A LI REEDH
FAEEHA627,0007T(2018 4F © 1,220,0007T) ©

BUHE-ROFRE—E0F TEAEERE
Hl- ERMEGTETENEE . RBREEHTES
gEME-

(b)  M2019F3A31H  HRRGAPBRERAE

During the year, HK$627,000 (2018: HK$1,220,000) was recognised as an expenditure
in the consolidated income and expenditure account in respect of leasing of land
and buildings.

The leases typically run for an initial period of one to five years, with an option
to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

(b) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2019 not provided for in the

HEHEREENT consolidated financial statements were as follows:
SEREENLR
The Group and the Council
2019 2018
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$’000
[R5 39 Contracted for 7,846 10,678
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24, BERETHNEMTA
BERSAR - SAISMIAOEAS BN

24. Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

EMEE Financial assets
£E EENR
The Group The Council
P8:1-32%:N IP8: 32959
sTEMN ‘ TTERN )
SREE BRk SREE BERR
Financial FEUBR R Financial FEUBRR
assets at Loan and assets at Loan and
amortised cost receivables amortised cost receivables
2019 2018 2019 2018
BET T BT T BEET T BT T
HK$°000 HKS$000 HK$°000 HKS’000
BIEERKARR - Financial assets included
TER B & in accounts receivable,
ReepEE prepayments and deposits
(FfIsE8) (note 8) 97,782 55,101 97,444 54,638
Be - WITFERK Cash, bank balances, and
TE BTk (Bt 10) fixed deposits (note 10) 408,113 344724 387,540 321,694
FEUR BT B A RIFRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 1,136 1,394
505,895 399,825 486,120 377,726
cRaE Financial liabilities
58 EENR
DB AT R DB AETER
sEas cWas
The Group The Council
Financial liabilities at Financial liabilities at
amortised cost amortised cost
2019 2018 2019 2018
BT T BT IT BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’°000 HKS$’000
BRETEMNER Financial liabilities included
RIEFTE R in accounts payable and
SriasE (k1) accruals (note 11) 102,444 172,274 98,827 166,033
FERTES A RIRE Amounts due to associates 1,089 811 = -
FEASHIB A RZ0E Amounts due to subsidiaries = - 11,132 10,887
103,533 173,085 109,959 176,920

25. TRIEAREEBERAAREE

SEEEFEEBRETEELEE RPES FIX
RANER - ELE R R IRIREE
RS E IR BR R IRAINIAEIE - A8 :

25. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

oip

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the normal
course of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks
are described below.

(@) EEREF (a)

SENEERREIZRABUER BEEEDHER
BB YWAREEREERBEE-

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts receivable. Management
has a credit policy in place and exposure to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

£ ENRHKPC
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25. SRIEAREERAALEES)

@) EERB(®)
R2019F 3 31 BH GRS R ELMEER

TREFIF2019F 3 A31 BERREBHOEERELN
FEEEEESEERB( E2EREBER( BRIE
Ht &R BB HTIBERARENNIER T E
18)) REERE D FI2YINEHRSEESHE
ELEMELRVBERERNEERR

25. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(continued)

(a) Creditrisk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 March 2019

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk
based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on past due information
unless other information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-
end staging classification as at 31 March 2019. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets and the exposure to credit risk for the financial
guarantee contracts.

+=@A
EHEEEE
12-month >HABEEEE
expected credit losses Lifetime expected credit losses
LR (P73
F1RE FE2lE kY= Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
BEBTIT BT BT BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEURBR SR Accounts receivable* - - - 44,657 44,657
FFATERFIE R Financial assets included
Zer in prepayments
TREE and deposits
-IEE* ~Normal** 53,182 - - - 53,182
BERIBLEED Cash, bank balances,
- A A58 A and fixed deposits
- Not yet past due 408,113 - - - 408,113
461,295 - - 44,657 505,952

- FhASSR B R AR E AL AR R R AR R = DARK
BB AR E D RN MK e EE -

v BRIAENSRERZENEREEYEBNE
WEEMNBERZS S REEQVIRERIARNE
BREBARE L ZEEENERERWNRS
[EH]e

2018 F3 A3l BN RS A

AEENRSTRER T EETANSRMEE - ST
E—SREEMAZNEERRER - ERERT
NEEFH AEE NSRS S B AETT
HEfF-

HZE2019F3 A3 BIEFE SERREFPHEKER
A FE UK BR SR AB B A 5206( 2018 4F © 33%) ©

BREEXAEERRERERRNE - SBEIN
FIRPAHIEES

£ ENRHKPC

For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified approach for
impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 8 to
the financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments and deposits are
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no information
indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Maximum exposure as at 31 March 2018

Cash is deposited with financial institutions with sound credit ratings and the Group
has exposure limit to any single financial institution. Given their high credit ratings,
the Group does not expect any of these financial institutions will fail to meet their
obligations.

As at year ended 31 March 2019, 52% (2018: 33%) of the total accounts receivable
was due from the Group’s five largest customers.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from accounts receivable are set out in note 8.
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25. TEiEREERAAREBE S

(b) RENVE SR

SENBREEREERDESH R UHERERT
RORSER BNISRSNERSBAIELNE
Em% -

FESERAEENBRHNESRBEN 201943 A318H
2018 F3 A3 BEMEREEREAHRITRR S RET
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25. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to satisfy its contractual and reasonably
foreseeable obligations as they fall due.

All financial liabilities of the Group and the Council are carried at amounts not
materially different from their contractual undiscounted cash flows as at 31 March
2019 and 2018. The earliest date the Group and the Council are required to settle
these liabilities is within one year or payable on demand.

(c) Interest rate risk

The Council considers that there is no significant exposure to interest rate risk.

(d) Currency risk

The Council considers that there is no significant exposure to currency risk.

(e) Capital management

The Group defines “capital” as including all components of total funds. Trading
balances that arise as a result of trading transactions with other group companies
are not regarded by the Group as capital.

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern and to enable the Group to meet its liabilities
as they fall due for the foreseeable future.

The Group’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard
to the capital management practices of the Group. Neither the Council nor its
subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirement in the current
and prior years.

26. Related Party Transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group entered into the following related party transactions during
the year:

Council Membership of the Council is appointed by Chief Executive of the
Government. The Government has significant influence over the Council and
transactions between the Council and the Government are considered to be related
party transactions and are identified separately in these financial statements.
During the year, the Council had the following related party transactions with the
Government and Council Members:

2019 2018
BT T BT
HK$7000 HK$'000
W& B - Receipt of government subvention used

BR : EBIHES for recurrent activities 239,424 223,294
REBUTRIARIEWA (HizEa) Service income from the Government (note a) 110,703 93,471
R EBUTEBIE B KM (FiEEb) Income from government funding schemes (note b) 69,280 57,880

HREEEENRESEEKE Purchase from entities related to members of the Council
BRAMHEE 1,034 1,450

£ ENRHKPC
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26. Related Party Transactions (continued)

Notes:

(@) The service income from the Government relates to projects in environmental
management, technology development, information technology, business
management, etc., which are obtained either by a competitive process or through
partnership agreements with various government departments, and the income is
charged in accordance with the terms of the agreements.

(b)  The income from government funding schemes relates to projects in research
and development which are obtained by a competitive process and the income is
charged in accordance with the terms of the agreements.

27. Note to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Upon adoption of HKFRS 15 as at 1 April 2018, accounts receivable, prepayments
and deposits and contract assets were increased by HK$7,153,000 and
HK$44,906,000, respectively. Also, accounts payable and accruals were decreased
by HK$90,719,000 while contract liabilities were increased by HK$174,327,000. Thus,
an increase in accounts receivable, prepayments and deposits of HK$42,248,000,
a decrease in contract assets of HK$4,389,000, an increase in contract liabilities of
HKS$73,031,000 and a decrease in accounts payable and accruals of HK$46,562,000
were noted in the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March
2019 after taking into account the effect of exchange differences on translation of
financial statements of operations in the PRC.

28. Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Council on
6 September 2019.
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